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...great
friends
abroad,
Already with fi rm footholds in 
Malaysia, Singapore, Australia , 
Indonesia, Vietnam, Brunei, Taiwan, 
Hong Kong and Thailand; Best World 
is ready to make forays into Japan, 
Korea, China and India to enlarge 
our ‘network’.

BANDAR SERI BEGAWAN

JOHOR BAHRU

HONG KONG

A new kid
on the block, Our recent relocation to a 42,000 square feet Changi 

Regional Corporate headquarters is an affi rmation of our 
aggressive regional growth plans for the future. Equipped 

with a larger workplace, new warehouse and manufacturing 
facilities, we have put in place the necessary infrastructure 

to see us through our growth in the region.
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About 
Best World
International
Limited
Best World is a company that specialises in the 
development of  health and wellness products 
which, in turn, are distributed through our 
proprietary direct selling channels. Founded 
in 1990 with a firm commitment to provide the 
best quality products to enhance our customers’ 
lives, Best World has since evolved into one of  
the leading companies in the health and wellness 
industry. Today, Best World has established 
a presence in Australia, Brunei, Hong Kong, 
Indonesia, Malaysia, Taiwan, Thailand and 
Vietnam; and it will continue to expand 
outside the Asia-Pacific region.
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VISION
To be a global leading health and wellness 
company dedicated to creating products 
that enhance the lives of our customers.

BEST WORLD’S MISSION 
THE PREFERRED CHOICE
FOR CONSUMERS
We strive to provide health and wellness 
products of the highest quality and maintain 
our competitive edge through continuous 
product innovation, embracing advanced 
R&D technology, and safeguarding 
our customer-focused values.
 
THE PREMIER CHOICE 
FOR DISTRIBUTORS
We will expand our distribution network 
globally, and establish an entrepreneurial 
platform which offers a unique fi nancially reward-
ing programme for any individual to pursue 
their fi nancial freedom with Best World.

THE BEST CHOICE 
FOR PARTNERSHIP
We aim to develop and maintain long-term 
relationships with our customers, business 
partners, distributors, staff and shareholders based 
on integrity and trust. We are committed 
to developing a positive, harmonious and 
respectable working community and our 
continual investment in their development 
will keep our distributors and staff motivated, 
improve productivity and effi ciency, thereby 
maximising our shareholders’ value.
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Founders’
Message

Dr Dora Hoan
Group Managing Director & Chief Executive Offi cer 

“This year, we have achieved manifold returns across all 
aspects of  the business. This achievement brings us one step 
nearer to our dream of  becoming a world class company.”
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Dr Doreen Tan
Chairman

“Our focus in the regional health and wellness 
market, coupled with our constantly improving Direct 

Selling model have yet again allowed us to achieve sustained 
growth in value for both our customers and shareholders.”
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Dear Shareholder,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, we are pleased to 
present the annual report of Best World International Limited 
(‘Best World’ or the ‘Company’) for the fi nancial year ended 
31 December 2006 (‘FY2006’).

We are happy to note that Best World has yet again con-
tinued its growth momentum in 2006 producing manifolds 
returns. Our consistent track record, strong operating cash 
fl ow and the continuous drive towards product innovation and 
regional expansion put us in a good position to meet market 
challenges and keep the company growth momentum.

ONE WORLD
In 2006, we grew beyond the boundaries of South 

East Asia. With the opening of our Hong Kong and Taiwan 
Regional Centres, and the incorporation of the Australian 
subsidiary is a step nearer to our vision of becoming a lead-
ing global company.

Our recent relocation to Changi is a refl ection and an 
affi rmation of our aggressive regional growth plans for the 
future. Built with a “forward thinking” concept, the new 
site is 200% larger than the previous one and can house 
40% more personnel. Equipped with a new warehouse and 
manufacturing facilities, we have put in place the necessary 
infrastructure to see us through our growth in the region. 
Moving forward, we are on schedule in making inroads to 
other new markets like the PRC, South Korea, Philippines, 
India and Japan. By 2010, we aim to be in such diversely new 
markets as the People’s Republic of China, the Philippines, 
India, Japan and South Korea. 

MANIFOLD RESULTS
In line with our strong revenue growth, gross profi t 

for FY2006 surged 39.6% to S$59.9 million, translating 
into a stable gross margin of 77.7%. All geographical 
segments achieved significant growth, with Malaysia 
performing exceptionally well. 

The Company’s effective tax rate was reduced from 
24.1% in the previous year FY2005 to 19.9%. This is mainly 
due to the Regional Headquarter Status that was awarded 

to the Group in July 2006 by the Singapore Economic 
Development Board.

Best World’s core business continued to generate strong 
cash fl ows, with net operating cash fl ow of S$12.7 million. 

A 45.4% increase in membership base – from 68,577         
in FY2005 to 99,708 members at the end of FY2006        
– together with an expanding network of BWL Lifestyle 
Centres (‘LC’) in the region – from 37 LCs in FY2005 to    
54 LCs – refl ects our broad-based strengths in the markets 
we operate. 

Boosted by growing demand for existing products, suc-
cessful product roll-outs, an increasing membership base, 
and ventures into new strategic regions, net profi t climbed 
40.1% to S$11.9 million. Overall, the Group’s earnings per 
share rose 30.7% to 7.19 cents.

In conjunction with the good performance, the Direc-
tors of the Group have recommended a fi nal tax-exempt 
dividend of 1.3 cents per share. Coupled with the interim 
dividend of 1.2 cents, this represents a dividend payout of 
34.8% of the Group’s FY2006 net profi t.

2006 OVERVIEW
2006 has been a landmark year for Best World.                   

Our upgrade from SGX-SESDAQ to Mainboard on 18 Sep-
tember 2006 is a testament to our continuous efforts to 
expose the company to a broader stream of investors and 
institutions and enhance our profi le as we seek to grow 
our company.

We also entered Brunei with two LCs, Hong Kong with 
one Regional Center and established our second Regional 
Centre in Johor Bahru, Malaysia in April 2006. We also 
launched our fi rst Regional Centre in Taiwan in November 
2006 as a sign of our confi dence in a market that has strong 
potential for growth.

In January 2006, we obtained halal certifi cation by the 
Islamic Food and Nutrition Center of America (IFANCA). This 
certifi cation now enables us to enter new markets that are 
currently dominated by Muslim consumers. Also, within our 
existing markets such as Malaysia, Brunei and Indonesia, 
we will also be able to target the largely untapped Muslim 
market. This will allow us to expand our current networks 

In line with our strong revenue growth, gross 
profit for FY2006 surged 39.6% to S$59.9 million, 
translating into a stable gross margin of  77.7%. All 
geographical segments achieved significant growth, 
with Malaysia performing exceptionally well. 

Founders’
Message
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and capture a greater market share. 
We were awarded Regional Headquarters Status by 

the Singapore Economic Development Board in July 2006. 
We were the fi rst Singapore-listed direct-selling company 
to be awarded this status. We are particularly honoured by 
this and believe that operating out of the Singapore head-
quarters will be more effi cient and provide better support 
to our regional colleagues. 

The extensive product development team we built up 
has assisted us with the rollout of new products including 
the innovative pure collagen Q10 mask, an addition to our 
successful range of Dr’s Secret skincare. Our star product, 
the Negative Ionizer that was launched in December 2005 
achieved great success during the year in the review. 
Following its success, we launched an add-on to the range, 
the Überair Ride, in December 2006. Designed especially 
for the mobile lifestyle, we expect the product to be very 
well received. 

PROSPECTS
With the Asian economies continuing to register positive 

growth, bearing unforeseen circumstances. China and India 
continues to be the engines of growth in the region, while 
the group expects Malaysia, Indonesia and Singapore are 
expected to maintain its growth momentum.

In January 2007, the Group also took the initiative to 
establish its fi rst Regional Centre in China – this is expected 
to be fully operational in FY2007. The Group is currently 
in the process of setting up a subsidiary in Changsha, 
Hunan Province.  

In tandem with our regional expansion, we see a need 
to further develop our brand. As such, we have, with the 
support of IE Singapore, recently completed a branding 
exercise that will revitalise our brand after a comprehensive 
brand audit. After this, we will be streamlining our collaterals 
to unify the look of the new branding. We are confi dent that 
this exercise will raise our corporate profi le and support our 
overseas expansion plans. 

The outlook for our company is positive and we see 
many promising opportunities in the region. Going forward, 
we will continue the process of building capabilities within 
the Company to further strengthen the team as we aim for 
a higher level of achievements and fi nancial results.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
We are aware that the continuing success of the Company 

depends largely on the dedication of our staff. We would 
like to thank all management and staff both in Singapore 
and around the region for their diligence and dedication in 
making all of our achievements in 2006 possible. 

To our independent directors, we would like to express 
our gratitude for their wise counsel and guidance. 

We also take this opportunity to thank all our customers, 
shareholders, distributors and vendors for your confi dence 
in Best World. 

As we progress, we will continue to focus on our 3Ps 
– People, Products and Plan – to further build shareholder 
value and create manifold returns. Finally, we look forward 
to meeting you at the upcoming shareholder’s meeting that 
will be held on 27 April 2007 in Best World’s new corporate 
headquarters at Changi. 

Yours faithfully,

DR DORA HOAN   DR DOREEN TAN
Group Managing Director  Chairman
& Chief Executive Offi cer

We were awarded Regional Headquarters Status by 
the Singapore Economic Development Board in July 
2006. We were the first Singapore-listed direct-selling 
company to be awarded this status. We are particu-
larly honoured by this and believe that operating out 
of  the Singapore headquarters will be more efficient 
and provide better support to our regional colleagues.



Just what do our 3Ps stand for? 
How does the 3Ps strategy work 
in the larger scheme of  things? 
This section gives you the smaller 
details amid the bigger picture.
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Leveraging 
our 3Ps Strategy, 
we consolidate 
the present and 
chart our future
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The 3Ps built a strong foundation 
for consistent growth. Besides 
striving to improve the well-being 
of  our customers with premium 
quality Products, we devote ourselves 
to fulfilling the dreams of  aspiring 
entrepreneurs through our supportive 
Plan, ultimately cultivating well-
rounded People in Best World.
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Board of
Directors

Robson Lee

Independent
 Director

Lee Sen Choon

Independent 
Director

Huang Ban Chin

Executive Director

Ravindran S/O 
Ramasamy

Independent 
Director

Dr Doreen Tan
Chairman 

Dr Dora Hoan

Group Managing 
Director & Chief 
Executive Offi cer
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DR DORA HOAN
Group Managing Director & Chief Executive Offi cer

Dr Hoan, Founder of the Group, is a highly experienced 
direct selling expert with more than 30 years of involvement  
in the industry and a strong academic background. She holds 
a PhD in Business Administration from Western Pacific 
University – USA.

Being a key driver for the Group Corporate Development 
Business Planning and Marketing system, she created 
the unique marketing plan namely “ENP” for the group’s 
direct selling channel which differentiates the company 
from competitors. She also oversees the Group’s Human 
Resource Development and management.

Dr Hoan enjoys a strong reputation as one of Singapore’s 
top female entrepreneurs due to her active contribution 
to social and community work, serving leadership roles 
in various associations and grassroots organisations. She 
has received numerous awards for her achievements in the 
entrepreneurial scene in the region. 

DR DOREEN TAN 
Chairman

Dr Tan is one of the founders of the Group. With 
30 years experience in the industry, she has a rich 
professional knowledge of nutrition and dermatology. She 
holds a degree in Applied Nutrition from the American 
Academy of Nutrition and an Honorary Ph.D from Kennedy 
Western University, USA. She is currently studying for her 
Doctor of Naturopathy in Canyon College, USA.

She heads all product-related functions in the company 
such as product development and product training. As the 
company’s product specialist, she has a strong belief in 
holistic health and imparts her experience through seminar 
trainings and counselling services. 

She was the guest speaker at the ‘Nurturing Children 
Seminar’ in October 2005 organised by LianHe WanBao and 
was also a contributor to the newspaper’s bi-annual health 
publication, ‘A Guide to Well Being in 2005’.

HUANG BAN CHIN
Executive Director

Mr Huang is responsible for the execution of the Group’s 
business expansion plans and product development. He is also 
in charge of, overseeing the Group’s day to day operations, 
investor relations, corporate fi nancial management and plays 
a pivotal role in developing Best World’s brand name into 
the region. 

Mr Huang is a biochemist and microbiologist by training. 
He has 15 years of experience in the direct selling and healthy 
lifestyle industries. Upon graduating from the National 
University of Singapore in 1992 with a Bachelor of Science 
degree, he joined the Group as its marketing manager.

Mr Huang was promoted to the position of Director in 1994 
and assumed his current position as Executive Director in 2003. 

RAVINDRAN S/O RAMASAMY
Independent Director

Mr Ravindran is currently a legal consultant with Chris 
Chong and CT Ho Partnership. He is also an Independent 
Director of two Singapore-incorporated SGX-ST listed 
companies. Mr Ravindran was a Member of Parliament for 
the Marine Parade Group Representation Constituency and 
the Bukit Timah Group Representation Constituency. Other 
prior appointments include Chairman of the Government 
Parliamentary Committee for Defence and Foreign Affairs, 
Board Member of the People’s Association, and member of 
the Government Parliamentary Committee for Home Affairs 
and Law, the Marine Parade Town Council, the South East 
Community Development Council, the Singapore Institute 
of Directors and the Singapore Academy of Law.

LEE SEN CHOON
Independent Director

Mr Lee is currently a partner of Lee Seng Chan & Co.,                    
a public accounting fi rm in Singapore and has more than 
20 years of experience in accounting, auditing, taxation and 
corporate secretarial work. Mr Lee is the Treasurer of 
the Board of Directors of Singapore Chinese High School, a 
member of the Board of Governors of Hwa Chong Institution and 
the School Advisory Committee of Xingnan Primary School. 

Mr Lee is also a member of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants in England and Wales, and a practising member 
of the Institute of Certifi ed Public Accountants of Singapore. 
In addition, Mr Lee sits on the boards of several publicly 
listed companies as an independent director. 

He holds a Bachelor of Science degree (Hons) from the 
then Nanyang University and has a post-graduate diploma 
in Management Studies from the University of Saltford, 
United Kingdom.

ROBSON LEE
Independent Director

Mr Lee is a practising lawyer with more than 12 years 
of experience in capital markets and corporate finance 
legal work. Currently an equity partner in the law firm 
of Shook Lin & Bok, he is also a partner in the firm’s 
international fi nance practice, focusing on cross-border 
corporate finance and capital markets transactions in 
that country. 

Mr Lee is the Secretary of the Board of Governors of 
Hwa Chong Institution and Hwa Chong International School, 
as well as a trustee of the land on which the two schools 
are situated. He also sits on a number of publicly listed 
companies as an independent director. 

He is actively involved in various community and charity 
events, and is a patron in various community centres and 
citizens consultative committees.
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Key 
Management

Pengo Chow 

Country Manager, 
Hong Kong

George New

Executive Director, 
Taiwan

Jerry Lu

Senior Country 
Manager, Singapore 

and Indonesia

Katherine Cheh

Senior Country 
Manager, Malaysia
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Paul Wong

Warehouse/
Operations Manager

Sugiharto Husin

Group Information
System Manager

Koh Hui

Group Finance 
Manager

Phyllis Tan

Supply Chain 
Manager

Winnie Cheong

Accounts Manager

Marketing 
Communications 

Manager

Joe Ho

Jean Koh

Senior Regional 
Development

Manager 

Jorina Leong

IT Manager

Sandra Goh

Human Resource 
Manager/Special 
Asistant to CEO
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JERRY LU 
Senior Country Manager, 
Best World Lifestyle Singapore 
and PT Best World Indonesia

Mr Lu fi rst joined the Group in July 1995 as a marketing 
manager. In his current role as Senior Country Manager, he 
is responsible for overseeing the direct selling activities 
of sales affi liates, distributor relationships and day-to-day 
operations. He graduated from the Curtin University of 
Technology in Perth, Western Australia with a Bachelor of 
Commerce (Information Systems).

KATHERINE CHEH 
Senior Country Manager, 
Best World Lifestyle Sdn Bhd, Malaysia

Ms Cheh is responsible for overseeing the business 
development of the Malaysian subsidiary. Specifically, 
she oversees cost effectiveness, effi ciency, profi tability, 
distributor satisfaction and day-to-day operations. She has 
been with the Group since 1999 and has more than 20 years 
experience in the direct selling industry. 

PENGO CHOW 
Country Manager, 
Best World Lifestyle (HK) Company Limited

Mr Chow is responsible for the development of the 
Hong Kong market. His responsibilities include product 
registration in Hong Kong and overseeing the direct sell-
ing activities of sales affi liates, distributor relationships 
and day-to-day operations. He obtained his MBA from the 
University of Birmingham, United Kingdom in 1989 and is 
currently studying for a Doctor of Business Administration 
at the University of Newcastle. He is a Chartered Marketer 
and a Member of the Chartered Institute of Marketing, UK 
as well as a Member of the Institute of Management, UK. 
Before joining the Group, he had over 12 years of senior 
management and business development experience with 
skin care, health and pharmaceutical products. 

GEORGE NEW
Executive Director, 
Best World International Ltd Taiwan Branch

Mr New is responsible for the development of the Tai-
wanese market and oversees the direct selling activities of 
sales affi liates. He obtained a Bachelor of Pharmacy from 
Kaoshiung Medical University and is a qualifi ed Chinese 
medicine practitioner. He is the founder of the Beauty Style 
Art Interchange Association of the Republic of China and has 
over 30 years of experience in the fi eld of pharmaceutical 
products and dermatology. 

Country 
Managers
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Key 
Management

KOH HUI
Group Finance Manager

Ms Koh is responsible for the Group’s accounting and 
fi nancial reporting, including tax, budgeting and investor rela-
tions. She holds a Bachelor of Accountancy from Nanyang 
Technological University of Singapore, and is a Certifi ed 
Public Accountant with the Institute of Certifi ed Public Ac-
countants of Singapore. Prior to joining the Group in 2003, 
she was a senior auditor with Ernst and Young.

SUGIHARTO HUSIN 
Group Information System Manager

Mr Sugiharto oversees the Group’s IT requirements. He 
provides technological direction and oversees implementa-
tion of computer systems. He holds a Bachelor’s degree with 
Honors in Computer Science from The University of Central 
England. He is also a certifi ed Architect for Enterprise Java 
Application. He joined the group in 2006.

JEAN KOH 
Senior Regional Development Manager

Ms Koh leads the Regional Network Department which 
is primarily responsible for developing the new emerging 
markets of our direct selling network. She provides necessary 
support to the Group’s overseas subsidiaries in the region. 
She has been with the Group since 1991 and has over 20 
years of experiences in the direct selling industry. 

PAUL WONG
Warehouse/Operations Manager

Mr Wong is responsible for the Group’s warehouse 
and operations function. He ensures that production at 
the packaging facility is on schedule and oversees the 
daily operations of the warehouse. He has been with the 
Group since 1991.

JORINA LEONG 
IT Manager

Ms Leong oversees the development and maintenance 
of the Group’s integrated and centrally-managed communi-
cations network infrastructure. The network leverages the 
Group’s scale and scope to improve effi ciency for both the 
Group and distributors. She is a Microsoft Certifi ed Engineer 
and has been with the Group since 1997.

PHYLLIS TAN 
Supply Chain Manager

Ms Tan leads the Group’s supply chain function which 
includes logistics and inventory control. She is in charge of 
planning, implementing, and controlling the operations of the 
supply chain with the goal of satisfying customer require-
ments as effi ciently as possible. She also co-ordinates the 
fi nished goods from point-of-origin to point-of-consumption. 
She has been with the Group since 1998. 

JOE HO 
Marketing Communications Manager

Ms Ho is responsible for the Group’s overall market-
ing efforts to raise public awareness of our activities. Her 
responsibilities include event management, advertising 
and promotions. She has over a decade of experience in 
the marketing and promotion of lifestyle products in the 
direct selling industry. She holds a Bachelor of Science from 
the National Taiwan University and a Graduate Diploma in 
Marketing from the Marketing Institute of Singapore. She 
joined the Group in 2003.

SANDRA GOH 
Human Resource Manager/
Special Assistant to Group CEO

Ms Goh is responsible for the Group’s human resources. 
She ensures that workforce development is aligned with 
the corporate culture and charts the Company’s strategic 
direction. She also assists the Group CEO on all matters. 
She holds a Bachelor of Business Administration from RMIT 
and has been with the Group since 2004.

WINNIE CHEONG
Accounts Manager

Ms Cheong is responsible for all local accounting  func-
tions and assists the Group Finance Manager with the Group’s 
fi nancial reporting. She holds a Bachelor in Arts (Honors) 
in Business Accounting from the University of Lincolnshire 
and Humberside, United Kingdom. 
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Organisation
Chart

Best World International
Limited

Best World International Ltd Taiwan Branch 

Best World Lifestyle Pte Ltd 100%

Best World China Investments Pte. Ltd. 95%

Best World Lifestyle Pte Ltd 100%

Institute of Best World Lifestyle Pte.Ltd. 100%

Avance Living Pte. Ltd. 100%

Best World Lifestyle (HK) Company Limited 100%

Best World Lifestyle Pty Ltd 100%

BBWL Sdn Bhd 99%

PT Best World Indonesia 70%

70% Best World Lifestyle Sdn. Bhd. 

Best World Lifestyle (Thailand) Company Limited 49%



33

Company
Addresses

BEST WORLD 
INTERNATIONAL LTD 
BEST WORLD CHINA 
INVESTMENTS 
PTE. LTD 
AVANCE LIVING 
PTE. LTD
INSTITUTE OF BWL 
PTE. LTD
1 Changi North Street 1, 
Lobby 2 Singapore 498789
Tel: (65) 6899 0088
Fax: (65) 6542 1533
www.bestworld.com.sg

BEST WORLD 
LIFESTYLE PTE LTD 
BWL Headquarters
480 Toa Payoh Lorong 6 
HDB Hub East Wing 
#15-00 
Singapore 310480 
Tel: (65) 6363 6663
Fax: (65) 6748 7970 
www.bwl.com.sg

Ang Mo Kio Branch
Blk 726 Ang Mo Kio Ave 6
#01-4150 
Singapore 560726
Tel: (65) 6459 7288
Fax: (65) 6455 7277 

Bugis Branch
390 Victoria Street
Golden Landmark
#03-28
Singapore 188061
Tel: (65) 6348 9949
Fax: (65) 6396 8670 

Jurong Branch
Blk 353 Jurong East St 31
#01-105
Singapore 640353
Tel: (65) 6560 8884
Fax: (65) 6567 3343 

BEST WORLD 
LIFESTYLE SDN. BHD.
No. 11 Jalan Radin Anum
Bandar Baru, Sri Petaling 
57000 Kuala Lumpur 
Malaysia
Tel: (60) 3 9057 1133
Fax: (60) 3 9057 2158

JB Branch
141 Jalan Danga 
Taman Nusa Bestari Dua 
81300 Johor Bahru 
Malaysia 
Tel: (607) 558 8578
Fax: (607) 556 7479

BEST WORLD 
LIFESTYLE (THAILAND) 
COMPANY LIMITED
Unit 18A, Forum Tower
184 Rachadapisek Road
Huay Kwang 
10320 Bangkok Thailand
Tel: (66) 2 645 3298
Fax: (66) 2 645 3795

PT BEST WORLD 
INDONESIA
Mayapada Tower 
8th Floor Suite 0802A 
Jalan Jendral Sudirman 
Kav 28
Jakarta 12920 Indonesia
Tel: (62) 21 521 3566
Fax: (62) 21 252 5147

BEST WORLD 
LIFESTYLE (HK) 
COMPANY LIMITED
Room 1402-03, 14/F
Causeway Bay Plaza 1
489 Hennessy Road
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 3583 1838
Fax: (852) 3583 0118

BEST WORLD 
INTERNATIONAL 
LIMITED TAIWAN 
BRANCH
31 F, 160 Section 1
Taichungkang Road 
Taichung 40354 
Taiwan 
Tel: (886) 4 3601 8188
Fax: (886) 4 3601 0289
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OVERVIEW
2006 was a year of significant milestones for our 

overseas operations as Best World benefi ted from buoyant 
economies across the region. The launch of our Regional 
Centres in Johor Bahru, Taichung and Hong Kong and 17 
new Lifestyle Centres, as well as the launch of star products 
factored into delivering our third consecutive year of revenue 
and profi t growth.

In 2006, we successfully advanced beyond South East 
Asia, which brought our business reach to nine countries 
– Singapore, Malaysia, Indonesia, Thailand, Hong Kong, 
Vietnam, Brunei, Taiwan and Australia. 

Malaysia maintains its pole position as the Group’s largest 
revenue contributor, accounting for 42% of total revenue. The 
successful launch of new products, the continued popularity 
of the Drs Seager skincare range and increased numbers of 
Lifestyle Centres played major roles in this strong growth. 
Membership base also expanded 43.6% in 2006. The grand 
opening of the Johor Bahru Regional Centre in August pro-
vided an even stronger impetus for the continued growth of 
the Malaysian market. 

Singapore contributed S$24.0 million or 31.2% of total 
revenue. The successful marketing campaign for our Nega-
tive Ionizer and awareness brought about by our successful 
training systems led to a higher than expected growth in 
this market. 

Indonesia showed an encouraging rise of 22.7% 
despite the slow start during the first half of the year. 
Improving consumer sentiments and aggressive member-
ship drives coupled with a comprehensive training system 
helped Indonesia contribute S$17.6 million, a 35.4% 
growth from FY2005. The management in Indonesia is 
confident that with the launch of UberAir ride, our car 
ionizer designed for the mobile lifestyle, and the grand 
launch of the company in April 2007 will stimulate further 
and faster growth in Indonesia. 

New markets like Hong Kong and Taiwan have also 
achieved good growth during the year despite the competitive 
environment of the direct selling industry. With the establish-
ment of Regional Centres and the implementation of operational 
expertise, the Group is confi dent that sales in Hong Kong 
and Taiwan will improve in the next fi nancial year.

 FY2006 FY2005
 Revenue Revenue Change

Products S$’000 % S$’000 % %

Inner Harmony 7,426 9.7 13,223 24.0 (43.8)
Outer Harmony 55,236 71.6 41,324 75.0 33.7
Lifestyle Harmony  14,452 18.7 551 1.0 2,522.9

Total 77,114 100.0 55,098 100.0 40.0

Revenue 12 months ended  12 months ended % Change

 31st Dec 2006 31st Dec 2005 +/(-)

By Business Segment S$’000 % S$’000 % %

Direct Selling 76,622 99.4 54,290 98.5 41.1
Retail 136 0.2 176 0.3 (22.7)
Export 356 0.4 632 1.2 (43.7)

Total 77,114 100.0 55,098 100.0 40.0

CONTRIBUTION BY ACTIVITIES

CONTRIBUTION BY PRODUCTS

CONTRIBUTION BY GEOGRAPHICAL MARKETS

Revenue 12 months ended  12 months ended % Change

 31st Dec 2006 31st Dec 2005 +/(-)

By Geographical Location S$’000 % S$’000 % %

Malaysia 32,369 42.0 22,971 41.7 40.9
Singapore 24,037 31.2 17,987 32.7 33.6
Indonesia 17,550 22.7 12,963 23.5 35.4
Others 3,158 4.1 1,177 2.1 168.3

Total 77,114 100.0 55,098 100.0 40.0
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Our core direct selling business remains the main 
revenue contributor to the Group, accounting for approxi-
mately 99.4% or $76.6 million of total revenue. The strong 
41.1% growth in revenue was largely attributed to growing 
demands for our line of products. The Retail and Export 
segments both registered decline in revenue contribution 
as the Group channeled its resources mainly into the direct 
selling segment.

The Group’s membership base grew by 45.4% from 
68,577 in FY2005 to 99,708 in FY2006. The signifi cant 
membership base growth was centered on the Malaysian 
and Indonesian markets.

Inner harmony refers to our range of Health supple-
ments and weight management products. Due to the 
competitiveness of the industry, coupled with the fact that 
our membership is predominantly female who have direct 
interest in the Outer Harmony range, the company has 
focus training in our Outer and Lifestyle harmony range. 
The Group remains optimistic about our commitment to 
providing product training and brand building. To respond to 
these challenges, Avance (winner of Superbrands Consumer 
Choice 2006) will make its entry into our direct selling 
network in 2007. We will continue to explore and develop 

more innovative products as part of our commitment to 
benefi ting the community with better health products.

Our Outer Harmony range consisting of Dr’s Secret/
Seager remains as our top revenue contributor generating 
S$55.2 million or 71.6% of total revenue. Growth was driven 
by continued extension of our Outer Harmony range, which 
together with a packaging makeover, resulted in a 34% 
increase in sales. 

The Group has been a strong advocate for public 
education on the importance and benefi ts of negative ions. 
A series of educational workshops and demonstrations 
are frequently hosted in our Regional Centres. Due to 
the hazy environment caused by the fi res in Indonesia in 
October 2006, it also stepped up its marketing efforts to 
create more awareness of the importance of negative ions. 
These continual efforts proved fruitful when our Lifestyle 
Harmony range emerged with a very strong growth in 
FY2006. Best World also unveiled ÜberAir Ride, the 
latest product in the Lifestyle Harmony range. Spe-
cially designed for the mobile lifestyle, the ÜberAir Ride 
is an extension following the success of our best-selling 
Negative Ionizer.
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GROWTH STRATEGY
Product

In a bid to further penetrate existing and new markets, 
we recently obtained Halal-food certifi cation from the Islamic 
Food and Nutrition Council of America for our health supplements. 
Most of our top selling health supplements – Super EPA 2000, 
PhosChol, Black Currant Seed Oil and Super One A Day – 
have already been Halal-certifi ed. We are looking to certify 
our range of health supplements as well as skincare 
products to facilitate the expansion of our distribution reach.

The Group currently has a portfolio of 80 products and 
aims to launch more new products every year. 

Lifestyle Centres
During 2006, the Group opened 17 Lifestyle Centres 

around the region, and Regional Centres in Hong Kong, 
Taichung and Johor Bahru. With more Regional Centres 
and Lifestyle Centres opening up in the region, Best World 
products will be more accessible to the community. 

New Market
With the opening of our Hong Kong and Taiwan Regional 

Centres and the incorporation of our Australian subsidiary 
in 2006, the Group has offi cially taken its fi rst steps out of 
South East Asia. The incorporation of our Brunei subsidiary 
has also resulted in the opening of two Lifestyle Centres.

In line with the Group’s strategy to further develop 
our existing and new markets, we have recently relocated 
our regional operational functions to a 42,000 square feet 
Corporate Headquarters in Changi. While HDB Hub is utilised 
as Best World Lifestyle headquarters to better support 
expanding membership base. The new facility provides us the 
necessary infrastructure to ultimately recruit and develop 
more well-rounded People into Best World.

Moving forward, we are on schedule to make inroads 
to other new markets like China, South Korea, Philippines, 
India and Japan. 

QUALITY CONTROL
Best World is committed to producing quality products 

and services. To that end, the management pays special 
attention in our choice of contract manufacturers and 
new products.

The relocation of our packaging facility from Kallang 
Pudding to Changi will enable us to acquire better automa-
tions to accelerate our packaging to meet the demands of 
our regional subsidiaries. 

All of our cosmetics, skin care, personal care and formu-
lated nutritional supplement products are manufactured in 
GMP certifi ed or GMP equivalent facilities. We also obtained 
ISO 9001 in 2003. As such, our products are produced and 
controlled to the highest quality standard.

BRANDING
Brand building capability is increasingly important to 

deliver sustainable growth. In an environment where con-
sumers have more choices than ever, the Group recognises 
the importance of building lasting brands that carries not 
only a regional but a global appeal. In June 2006, the Group 
successfully completed a brand revitalisation exercise 
supported by IE Singapore. The newly refi ned Best World 
logo offi cially made its debut in October during our relocation 
of our Corporate Headquarters in Changi. To uphold corporate 
and brand image and reputation, the Group continues 
to ensure stronger consumer perception of Best World 
products through better packaging designs and investment 
in more initiatives to further safeguard our brand and 
intellectual properties. 

 
INVESTOR RELATIONS

To provide investors with a better understanding of our 
business and strategies, management regularly meets up 
with investment and analyst communities through analyst 
meetings, investment roadshows, results briefing and 
annual general meetings.

Operations
Review
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During the year in review, Mr Huang Ban Chin, Execu-
tive Director and Ms Koh Hui, Group Finance Manager met 
with visiting analysts and fund managers from Asia and 
Europe. To date, the Group has conducted more than 
50 meetings with the investment communities locally or 
overseas. Site visits to our corporate headquarters were 
also arranged for visitors to allow them to have a better 
insight of our business operations.

In particular, the board of directors and senior 
management were present at the second Annual General 
Meeting held on 25 April 2006 at HDB Hub to address 
shareholder’s queries.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
Besides promoting the spirit of Entrepreneurship and 

contributing to the secondary income of our members, Best 
World is also committed to making a difference in our com-
munity. While we are still seeking ways to better contribute to 
the development of accessible educational programmes for 
the underprivileged children, we continue to play an active 
role in providing medical attention to the underprivileged 
patients in 2006 by hosting a charity concert. Proceeds 
raised by the concert benefi ted the Radin Mas CCC and 
Compass Welfare Foundation. 

AWARDS IN 2006
Recognition for Business Excellence:
• Best World Annual Report 2005 Happy World
 Red Dot Design Award Best of the Best
 Grand Prix Winner in Communication Design

• Dr Dora Hoan and Dr Doreen Tan
 Ernst and Young Entrepreneur of the Year Finalists

• Best World Lifestyle (bwL)
 2006 Top 10 Infl uential Systems in Asia Pacifi c Region 

Awarded by World Chinese Businessman Union General 
21st Century Business Herald and Asia Pacifi c Direct 
Selling Media Alliance 

Recognition for Brand:
• Avance 
 Superbrands Consumer Choice 2006 

• Best World Lifestyle (bwL)
 2006 Top 10 Direct Selling Brand in Great Credibility

in Asia Pacifi c Region
 Awarded by World Chinese Businessman Union General 

21st Century Business Herald and Asia Pacifi c Direct 
Selling Media Alliance
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Dr Dora Hoan Beng Mui
Dr Doreen Tan Nee Moi
Huang Ban Chin
Ravindran s/o Ramasamy
Lee Sen Choon
Lee Teck Leng Robson

COMPANY SECRETARY
Low Mei Mei Maureen

REGISTERED OFFICE & 
BUSINESS ADDRESS
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Singapore 498789
Tel: 6899 0088 
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www.bestworld.com.sg

SHARE REGISTRAR & SHARE TRANSFER OFFICE
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Our Board of Directors is fully committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance by complying with the 

Code of Corporate Governance 2005 (“Code”). The Board consistently maintains communication with its shareholders 

and holds frequent dialogues with investors, analysts, fund managers and the press. All presentation materials are 

disseminated to SGX, the press and posted on the Company’s website at www.bestworld.com.sg.

Good corporate governance establishes and maintains an ethical environment and is an integral element of a sound 

corporation, providing a solid foundation for a company to be more transparent and forward-looking. It enhances 

corporate performance and accountability, and helps the Company to create long-term sustainable growth and returns 

for the shareholders.

This report describes the Company’s corporate governance processes and structures that were in place throughout the 

financial year, with specific reference made to the principles and guidelines of the Code. The Board is pleased to confirm 

that for the financial year ended 31 December 2006; the Company has generally adhered to the principles and guidelines 

as set out in the Code.

The Board will continue to work hard for the benefit of all shareholders by providing timely and accurate information 

through announcements and investor relations’ activities.

BOARD MATTERS
The Board’s Conduct of Its Affairs

Principle 1: Every Company should be headed by an effective Board to lead and control the company. The 

Board is collectively responsible for the success of the company. The Board works with the Management to 

achieve this and the Management remains accountable to the Board.

The Board consists of 6 members, comprising three independent non-executive directors, and three executive directors. 

Together, the directors bring a wide range of business, legal, accounting and financial experience relevant to the Group.

Name

Dr Doreen Tan Nee Moi  Chairman

Dr Dora Hoan Beng Mui  Group Chief Executive Officer

Mr Huang Ban Chin          Executive Director

Mr Lee Teck Leng Robson  Independent Director

Mr Ravindran s/o Ramasamy  Independent Director

Mr Lee Sen Choon                       Independent Director

Corporate
Governance
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The full Board meets regularly and ad hoc meetings are convened as and when deemed necessary. The Company’s 

Articles of Association provide for the Board to convene meetings via teleconferencing and electronic means. The details 

of attendance by individual Directors in the year 2006 are as follows:

      Number of meetings

      held while a member Number of meetings

Name     in year 2006  attended

Dr Doreen Tan Nee Moi     3  3
Dr Dora Hoan Beng Mui     3  3
Mr Huang Ban Chin     3  3
Mr Lee Teck Leng Robson     3  2
Mr Ravindran s/o Ramasamy    3  3
Mr Lee Sen Choon     3  3

The Board is entrusted with the responsibility of the overall management of the Company. The principal functions of the 

Board are:

a) Approving policies, strategies and financial objectives of the Company and monitoring the performance of 

Management;

b)  Overseeing the processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls, risk management, financial reporting  

and compliance;  

c)  Approving nominations of board directors, committee members and key personnel; and

d)  Approving annual budgets, funding requirements, expansion programmes, capital investment, major acquisitions  

and divestments proposals.

e)  Approving transactions involving interested parties.

The Company has established financial authorisation limits for operating and capital expenditures. The Board approves 

transactions exceeding certain threshold limits and while delegating authority for transactions below these limits to 

senior management so as to facilitate operational efficiency. 

Board members are also encouraged to attend seminars and receive training to improve themselves in the discharge of 

their duties as directors. The Company works closely with professionals to provide its directors with changes to relevant 

laws, regulations and accounting standards.

Board Composition and Balance

Principle 2: There should be a strong and independent element on the Board, which is able to exercise objective 

judgment on corporate affairs independently, in particular, from Management. No individual or small group of 

individuals should be allowed to dominate the Board’s decisions.

The Board comprises 6 directors of whom 3 are independent – Mr Lee Teck Leng Robson, Mr Ravindran s/o Ramasamy 

and Mr Lee Sen Choon. The Company endeavors to maintain a strong and independent element on the Board. This is 

determined by the directors not having a relationship with the Company or its related companies or its officers that could 
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interfere, or be reasonably perceived to interfere, with the exercise of the director’s independent business judgment with 

a view to the best interests of the Company. The Nominating Committee (“NC”) reviews the directors’ independence 

annually and has determined their independence. 

The assessment includes issues of expertise (including international experience and industry background),  independence, 

integrity, diversity and age, as well as skills relating to operations, manufacturing, finance, marketing, technology and 

public policy. The Nomination Committee has not established specific minimum eligibility requirements for Board 

members other than integrity, a commitment to act in the best interests of all shareholders, requirements relating to age 

and ensuring that a substantial majority of the Board remains independent.

Together, the Board members possess a balanced field of core competencies to lead the Company. Details of the Board 

members’ qualifications and experience are presented in this Annual Report under the heading “Board of Directors”.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Principle 3: There should be a clear division of responsibilities at the top of the Company – the working of the 

Board and the executive responsibility of the Company’s business – which will ensure a balance of power and 

authority, such that no one individual represents a considerable concentration of power.

There is a clear separation of the roles and responsibilities of the Chairman, Dr Doreen Tan Nee Moi and the Group CEO, 

Dr Dora Hoan Beng Mui. The presence of a strong independent element in the Board via the active participation of the 

independent directors ensures that the Chairman and the Group Chief Executive Officer do not have unfettered powers 

of decision.

The Chairman’s duties and responsibilities include:

a)  Scheduling of meetings to enable the Board to perform its duties responsibly;

b)  Preparing the agenda of meetings;

c)  Ensuring the proper conduct of meetings and accurate documentation of the proceedings;

d)  Ensuring the smooth and timely flow of information between the Board and Management; 

e)  Ensuring compliance with internal polices and guidelines of the Company; and

f) Ensuring effective communication with shareholders.

In addition to the above duties, the Chairman will assume duties and responsibilities as may be required from time            

to time. 

The Group Chief Executive Officer, Dr Dora Hoan Beng Mui is responsible in the strategic direction of the Company and 

provides the Group with strong leadership and vision.
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Board Membership

Principle 4: There should be a formal and transparent process for the appointment of new directors to the 

Board. As a principle of good corporate governance, all directors should be required to submit themselves for 

re-nomination and re-election at regular intervals.

The Nominating Committee (“NC”), established in 2004 comprising 3 members whom are non-executive independent 

directors. The committee is chaired by Mr Ravindran s/o Ramasamy who is not associated in any way with the substantial 

shareholders of the Company.

Chairman   Mr Ravindran s/o Ramasamy

Member   Mr Lee Teck Leng Robson

Member   Mr Lee Sen Choon

The number of meetings held and attendance at the meetings during the last financial year were as follows:

      Number of meetings

      held while a member Number of meetings

Name     in year 2006  attended

Ravindran s/o Ramasamy     2 2
Lee Sen Choon     2 2
Lee Teck Leng Robson     2 1

The NC is established for the purposes of ensuring that there is a formal and transparent process for all board 

appointments. It has adopted written terms of reference defining its membership, administration and duties. 

The duties of the NC are as follows: 

a)  To make recommendations to the Board on all board appointments; 

b)  To re-nominate directors based on the director’s contribution and performance;

c)  To determine annually whether a director is independent; 

d)  To review the composition of the Board and make recommendations on the performance criteria and appraisal 

process to be used for the evaluation of the individual directors; and

e) To assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and decide if each director has been adequately carrying out 

his or her duties.

At each AGM, not less than one-third of the Directors are required to retire from office by rotation. A retiring Director is 

eligible for re-election by shareholders at the AGM.

The details of the Board members’ qualifications and experience including the year of initial appointment and election 

are presented in this Annual Report under the heading “Board of Directors”.   
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Board Performance

Principle 5: There should be a formal assessment of the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the 

contribution by each director to the effectiveness of the Board.

An effective Board is able to make sound decisions and act in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders 

and will be reflected in the performance of the Group. The Board should ensure compliance with the applicable laws and 

the Board members should act in good faith, with due diligence and care in the best interests of the Company and its 

shareholders. The Board should also be able to lend support to Management at all times and to steer the Group in the 

right direction.

As part of the drive for a consistent assessment, the Directors are required to complete appraisal forms to assess 

each individual Director’s contributions to the effectiveness of the Board on an annual basis. The factors assessed 

include participation at board meetings, compliance with Company’s policies and procedures; performance in respect 

of specific tasks delegated and other factors that will assist in assessing the overall effectiveness of the Board. More 

importantly, the Board, through the Nominating Committee, has to its best efforts ensured that directors appointed to 

the Board whether individually or collectively possess the background, experience, knowledge in their business and 

competencies in finance and management skills critical to the Group’s business. It has also ensured that each director, 

with his special contributions, brings to the Board an independent and objective perspective to enable sound, balanced 

and well-considered decisions to be made. 

The NC has reviewed and assessed the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the contribution by each individual 

director to the effectiveness of the Board in the year 2006. This will be conducted on an annual basis.

The Directors also completed appraisal forms to assess each individual Director’s contributions to the effectiveness of 

the Board on an annual basis. The factors assessed include participation at board meetings, compliance with Company’s 

policies and procedures; performance in respect of specific tasks delegated and other factors that will assist in assessing 

the overall effectiveness of the Board. 

Access to Information

Principle 6: In order to fulfill their responsibilities, board members should be provided with complete, adequate 

and timely information prior to board meetings and on an on-going basis.

The Directors may communicate directly with the Management team and the Company Secretary on all matters whenever 

they deem necessary, and have unrestricted access to the Company’s records and information. The Company Secretary 

attends board meetings and is responsible for recording of the proceedings. From time to time, they are furnished with 

detailed information concerning the Group to enable them to be fully cognisant of the decisions and actions of the 

Group’s executive management. In addition, they receive monthly management financial statements to enable them to 

exercise oversight over the Group’s operational and financial performance. The Board has separate and independent 

access to the Company Secretary and to other senior management executives of the Company and of the Group at all 

times in carrying out their duties. Under the direction of the Executive Chairman, the Company Secretary ensures good 
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information flows within the Board and its committees, between senior management and the independent directors, as 

well as to facilitate orientation and assist with professional development as required.

The Board is furnished with board papers prior to any board meeting. These papers are issued in sufficient time to enable 

the directors to obtain additional information or explanations from the Management, if necessary. The Board papers 

include sufficient background explanatory information from the Management on financial, business and corporate issues 

to enable the directors to be properly briefed on issues to be considered at Board meetings. Such explanatory information 

may also be available in the form of briefings to the directors or formal presentations made by senior management staff 

in attendance at Board meetings, or by external consultants engaged on specific projects. The Board papers include 

minutes of the previous meeting, reports relating to investment proposals, budgets, financial results announcements, 

and reports from committees, internal and external auditors. The Company Secretary attends all Board meetings and 

meetings of the Board committees of the Company and ensure that Board procedures are followed and that applicable 

rules and regulations are complied with. The minutes of all Board committees’ meetings are circulated to the Board.

The Company currently does not have a formal procedure for Directors to seek independent and professional advice 

for the furtherance of their duties. However, directors may, on a case-to-case basis, propose to the Board for such 

independent and professional advice, the cost of which may be borne by the Company. Where the directors, whether 

individually or as a group, require independent professional advice in furtherance their duties, the Company Secretay will 

appoint a professional advisor to render the advice and keep the Board informed of such advice, with cost to be borne 

by the Company.

REMUNERATION MATTERS
Procedures for Developing Remuneration Policies

Principle 7: There should be a formal and transparent procedure for fixing the remuneration packages of 

individual directors. No director should be involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee (“RC”) is established comprising 3 members whom are non-executive independent 

directors. 

Chairman   Mr Lee Teck Leng Robson

Member   Mr Ravindran s/o Ramasamy

Member   Mr Lee Sen Choon

The number of meetings held and attendance at the meetings during the last financial year were as follows:

      Number of meetings

      held while a member Number of meetings

Name     in year 2006  attended

Lee Teck Leng Robson      2 2
Lee Sen Choon     2 2
Ravindran s/o Ramasamy     2 2
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No member of the RC has expertise in the field of executive compensation. The RC may seek professional advice where 

necessary.

The RC is established for the purposes of ensuring that there is a formal and transparent procedure for fixing the 

remuneration packages of individual directors. The overriding principle is that no director should be involved in deciding 

his own remuneration. It has adopted written terms of reference that defines its membership, roles and functions and 

administration. 3 meetings were held in the year 2006.

The duties of the RC are as follows:

a)  To review and recommend to the Board a framework of remuneration for executive directors, chief executive officer 

(“CEO”) and senior management staff;

b)  To review the remuneration packages of employees related to any of the executive directors, CEO or substantial 

shareholder; and

c)  To recommend to the board, the Executive’s and Employees’ Share Option Schemes or any long term incentive 

scheme.

Level of Mix of Remuneration

Principle 8: The level of remuneration should be appropriate to attract, retain and motivate the directors 

needed to run the company successfully but companies should avoid paying more for this purpose. A 

proportion of the remuneration, especially that of executive directors, should be linked to performance.

In setting and reviewing the remuneration packages, the Company takes into consideration the remuneration and 

employment conditions in comparable companies and industries, as well as the Group’s relative performance and the 

work scope of the individual directors.

The Independent Directors are paid Director’s fees for their efforts and time spent, responsibilities and contribution 

to the Board. Competitive fees are paid to attract, motivate and retain the directors. The directors’ fees are subject to 

approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

The remuneration of the Executive Directors is based on service agreements dated 20 May 2004 and which are 

disclosed to shareholders in the Company’s Prospectus dated 28 June 2004. The service agreements are for an initial 

period of three years for Dr Doreen Tan Nee Moi, Dr Dora Hoan Beng Mui and Mr Huang Ban Chin. In addition to the said 

service agreements, the Executive Directors’ basic monthly salaries were revised in accordance to industry standards 

in December 2005. This revision of salaries was proposed by the Remuneration Committee on 1 December 2005 and 

approved by the Board on 6 December 2005. The remuneration for the executive directors and the key executives 

comprise of a basic salary component and a variable component, which is the incentive bonus based on the performance 

of the Group as a whole.
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The annual reviews of the compensation of directors are carried out by the Remuneration Committee to ensure that the 

remuneration of the executive directors and senior management is commensurate with their performance, giving due 

regard to the financial and commercial health and business needs of the Group. 

Disclosure on Remuneration

Principle 9: Each Company should provide clear disclosure of its remuneration policy, level and mix of 

remuneration, and the procedures for setting remuneration, in the Company’s annual report.

Remuneration of Directors of the Company

           Provident Incentive  

Remuneration Band   Salary Bonus Fund Bonus Fees Total

up to $250,000     (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)

Lee Sen Choon   – – – – 100% 100%
Robson Lee Teck Leng  – – – – 100% 100%
Ravindran s/o Ramasamy  – – – – 100% 100%

          Provident Incentive Benefits- 

Remuneration Band  Salary Bonus Fund Bonus in-kind Fees Total

from $250,001-$500,000  (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)

Huang Ban Chin  48.2 4.0 2.0 44.8 1.0 – 100% 

          Provident Incentive Benefits- 

Remuneration Band  Salary Bonus Fund Bonus in-kind Fees Total

from $500,001-$750,000  (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%) (%)

Dora Hoan Beng Mui 47.9 4.0 0.7 46.9 0.5 – 100% 
Doreen Tan Nee Moi 47.9 4.0 0.7 46.9 0.5 – 100% 

A special bonus payment, which is payable over a period of 4 years commencing from 2005 up to 2008 was awarded to 

staff. Our top 5 executives (who are not directors) of the Group fall within the remuneration band of below $200,000:

Ms Katherine Cheh Foong Kuan Country Manager, Best World Lifestyle Sdn. Bhd

Ms Jorina Leong   IT Manager

Ms Koh Hui    Group Finance Manager

Ms Jean Koh     Senior Regional Development Manager

Mr Jerry Lu    Senior Country Manager, Singapore and Indonesia

The remuneration of the Directors and key employees is reviewed by the RC and is disclosed in the Annual Report. The 

Board is of the opinion that it is not necessary to invite the shareholders to approve the Board’s annual remuneration 

report and policy. 
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Accountability

Principle 10: The Board is accountable to the shareholders while the Management is accountable to the 

Board.

The Board is accountable to the shareholders while the Management is accountable to the Board.

The Management presents to the Board, the half-yearly and full-year accounts and the Audit Committee reports to the 

Board on the results for review and approval. The Board approved the results after review and authorized the release of 

the results to the SGX-ST and the public via SGXNET.

The Board is also provided with relevant information on the Group’s performance for effective monitoring and decision-

making.

Audit Committee

Principle 11: The Board should establish an Audit Committee (“AC”) with written terms of reference that 

clearly set out its authority and duties.

The Audit Committee comprises 3 members whom are non-executive independent directors. 

Chairman   Mr Lee Sen Choon

Member   Mr Ravindran s/o Ramasamy

Member   Mr Lee Teck Leng Robson

The Chairman, Mr Lee Sen Choon, has more than 20 years of experience in accounting, auditing, taxation and corporate 

secretarial work. The other members of the AC possess experience in finance, legal and business management. 

The Board is of the opinion that the members of the AC have sufficient financial management and expertise and 

experience in discharging their duties. The role of the AC is to assist the board with discharging its responsibility to 

safeguard the Company’s assets, maintain adequate accounting records, develop and maintain effective systems of 

internal control.

The duties of the AC are as follows:

a)  To review the audit plan, system of internal accounting controls and the audit report in conjunction with external 

auditors;

b)  To review the assistance given by the Company’s officers to the external auditors;

c)  To review the independence and objectivity of the external auditors annually;

d)  To nominate external auditors for re-appointment and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the 

external auditors;
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e)  To review the financial statements of the Company including half year and full year results and the respective 

announcements before submission to the board of directors;

f)  To give due consideration to the requirements of Stock Exchange Listing Rules;

g)  To review interested person transactions; and

h) To review the effectiveness of the internal audit function.

In discharging the above duties, the AC confirms that it has full access to and co-operation from Management and is 

given full discretion to invite any director or executive director to attend its meetings. In addition, the AC has also been 

given reasonable resources to enable it to perform its functions properly. It also has full discretion to invite any executive 

director or executive officer to attend its meetings. The Audit Committee meets with the internal auditors and the external 

auditors separately, at least once a year, without the presence of the Management, to discuss the reasonableness of the 

financial reporting process, to review the adequacy of audit arrangements with particular emphasis on the observations 

and recommendations of the external auditors, the scope and quality of their audits and the independence and objectivity 

of the external auditors.

The AC has conducted an annual review of the volume of non-audit services to satisfy itself that the nature and extent 

of such services will not prejudice the independence and objectivity of the auditors before recommending their re-

nomination to the board. The Company recognises that external auditors are a critical component of the Group’s overall 

corporate governance framework as they provide the Board and shareholders with an independent verification of the 

Group’s financial statements as well as highlighting areas for strengthening the Group’s systems of internal control and 

accounting procedures during the course of the audit. The Company believes that a periodic rotation of external auditors 

will serve to further enhance the independence and effectiveness of the external auditors and, in the process, further 

strengthen the corporate governance of the Group.

During the year 2006, the AC met 2 times and the details of attendance were as follows:

      Number of meetings

      held while a member Number of meetings

Name     in year 2006  attended

Lee Sen Choon       2 2
Ravindran s/o Ramasamy      2 2
Lee Teck Leng Robson      2 2

Internal control

Principle 12: The Board should ensure that the Management maintains a sound system of internal controls to 

safeguard the shareholders’ investments and the company’s assets.

The Board believes that, in the absence of any evidence to the contrary, the system of internal controls maintained 

by the Company’s management provides reasonable assurance against material financial misstatements or loss 

and includes the safeguarding of assets, the maintenance of proper accounting records, the reliability of financial                                  

information, compliance with appropriate legislation, regulation and best practice and the identification and management 

of business risks.
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The Board notes that no system of internal control can provide absolute assurance against the occurrence of material 

errors, poor judgment in decision-making, human error, fraud or other irregularities and can provide only reasonable and 

not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Based on the internal auditors’ reports submitted by the internal auditors and the various controls put in place by the 

Management, the Audit Committee is satisfied that there are adequate internal controls.

Internal Audit

Principle 13: The Company should establish an internal audit function that is independent of the activities it 

audits.

The Board recognises that it should maintain a system of internal control processes to safeguard shareholders’ 

investments and the Group’s business and assets. There are systems in place intended to provide reasonable but not 

absolute assurance against material misstatements or loss, and include the safeguarding of assets, the maintenance 

of proper accounting records, the reliability of financial information, compliance with appropriate legislation and best 

practices, and the containment of business risks. The Management monitors the effectiveness of the internal financial 

control systems and procedures while the internal audit function is outsourced to qualified professionals. 

The internal auditors report primarily to the Chairman of the Audit Committee and plan its internal audit schedules in 

consultation with, but independent of the Management. The audit plan is submitted to the Audit Committee for approval 

prior to the commencement of the internal audit. The Audit Committee reviews the activities of the internal auditors on 

a regular basis, including overseeing and monitoring of the implementation of improvements required on internal control 

weaknesses identified.

Communication with Shareholders

Principle 14: Companies should engage in regular, effective and fair communication with shareholders.

The Company endeavors to communicate regularly, effectively and fairly with its shareholders. In line with the continuous 

disclosure obligations of the Company pursuant to the Singapore Exchange Listing Rules and the Singapore Companies 

Act, the Board’s policy is that all shareholders should be informed in a comprehensive manner all material developments 

that impact the Group on a timely basis. They are also committed not to selectively disclose unpublished price sensitive 

information.

The Company communicated information to its shareholders on a timely basis through:

a)  Disclosures to SGXNET and press releases on major developments of the Group - half-year and full-year financial 

statements containing a summary of the financial information and affairs of the Group for the period are issued via 

SGXNET onto the SGX website as well as in press releases;
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b)  The Group’s website at www.bestworld.com.sg from which shareholders can access. The website provides all 

publicly disclosed financial information, corporate announcements, press releases, annual reports and the webcasts 

of our Director’s presentation during Results Briefing sessions. 

c)  Share investor online portal, which provides the Company’s share updates and all publicly disclosed information. It 

also provides web cast of analysts’ briefing for the update of our financial results;

d)  Asiaone.com.sg forum that publishes updated investor relations’ information; 

e)  Media and analyst briefings for the Group’s half-year and full-year financial results (chaired by the Executive 

Director) as well as other briefings, as appropriate;

f)  Annual reports which are prepared and issued to all shareholders – Includes all relevant information about the 

Group, including future developments and other disclosures required by the Companies Act and the Singapore 

Financial Reporting Standards; 

g)  Notices of and explanatory memoranda for AGMs and extraordinary general meetings; In addition, shareholders are 

encouraged to attend the AGM to ensure a greater level of shareholder participation and for them to be kept up to 

date as to the Group’s strategies and goals; and

h)  Overseas road shows and investment conferences with institutional investors.

Principle 15: Companies should encourage greater shareholder participation at AGMs, and allow shareholders 

the opportunity to communicate their views on various matters affecting the Company.

The Annual General Meeting is the principal forum for dialogue with shareholders. There is an open question and answer 

session at which shareholders may raise questions or share their views regarding the proposed resolutions and the 

Company’s businesses and affairs. The notice of the AGM is dispatched to shareholders, together with explanatory 

notes or a circular on items of special business, at least 14 working days before the meeting. Each item of special 

business included in the notice of the meeting is accompanied, where appropriate, by an explanation for the proposed 

resolution.

In addition, the Chairman of the respective committees and the external auditors will be present at the AGM to address 

any queries from the shareholders.

The Chairmen of the Executive, Audit, Remuneration and Nominating Committees are in attendance at the Company’s 

AGM to address shareholders’ questions relating to the work of these Committees. The Company’s external auditors 

are also invited to attend the AGM and are available to assist the directors in addressing any relevant queries by the 

shareholders relating to the conduct of the audit and the preparation and content of their auditors’ report.
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SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has set out guidelines to the directors and key employees of the group to prohibit dealings in the 

Company’s securities while in possession of price sensitive information during the period commencing one month 

before the announcement of the Company’s half-year and full-year results and ending on the date of announcement of 

the results.

All directors and executives of the Company are also advised to observe insider trading laws at all times even when 

dealing in the Company’s securities within the permitted trading period.

INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS POLICY
The Company has adopted an internal policy governing procedures for the identification, approval and monitoring 

of transactions with interested persons. All interested person transactions (“IPT”) are subject to review by the Audit 

Committee.

Currently, the Company is not required to have a general mandate from its shareholders in relation to IPT as the aggregate 

value of IPT transactions is below the threshold level as set out in the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST.
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The directors of the company are pleased to present their report together with the audited financial statements of the 

company and of the group for the financial year ended 31 December 2006. 

1. DIRECTORS AT DATE OF REPORT
 The directors of the company in office at the date of this report are:

 Dr. Dora Hoan Beng Mui

 Dr. Doreen Tan Nee Moi

 Mr. Huang Ban Chin

 Mr. Lee Teck Leng Robson

 Mr. Ravindran s/o Ramasamy

 Mr. Lee Sen Choon

2. ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE BENEFITS BY MEANS OF THE 
 ACQUISITION OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES
 Neither at the end of the financial year nor at any time during the financial year did there subsist any arrangement 

whose object is to enable the directors of the company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or 

debentures in the company or any other body corporate.

3.  DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES
 The directors of the company holding office at the end of the financial year had no interests in the share capital of 

the company and related corporations as recorded in the register of directors’ shareholdings kept by the company 

under section 164 of the Companies Act, Cap 50 except as follows:

 Held in the Deemed

 name of directors interest

Name of directors and companies   At beginning At end At beginning At end

in which interests are held    of year of year of year of year

Best World International Limited                           Ordinary shares  

Dr. Dora Hoan Beng Mui    16,931,600 17,331,600 60,000,000 60,000,000
Dr. Doreen Tan Nee Moi    16,931,600 17,331,600 60,000,000 60,000,000
Mr. Huang Ban Chin    4,800,000 4,800,000 1,200,000 1,200,000
Mr. Lee Teck Leng Robson    52,800 52,800 –  –
Mr. Lee Sen Choon    60,000 60,000 –  –

By virtue of section 7 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50, Dr Dora Hoan Beng Mui and Dr Doreen Tan Nee Moi are deemed to 

have an interest in all the related corporations of the company.

The directors’ interests as at 21 January 2007 were the same as those at the end of the year.

Report of  
The Directors
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4. CONTRACTUAL BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS
 Since the beginning of the financial year, no director of the company has received or become entitled to receive 

a benefit which is required to be disclosed under section 201(8) of the Companies Act, Cap. 50, by reason of a 

contract made by the company or a related corporation with the director or with a firm of which he is a member, or 

with a company in which he has a substantial financial interest except as disclosed in the financial statements.

5. OPTIONS TO TAKE UP UNISSUED SHARES
 During the financial year, no option to take up unissued shares of the company or any corporation in the group was 

granted. 

6. OPTIONS EXERCISED
 During the financial year, there were no shares of the company or any corporation in the group issued by virtue of 

the exercise of an option to take up unissued shares.

7.  UNISSUED SHARES UNDER OPTION
 At the end of the financial year, there were no unissued shares under option.

8. AUDIT COMMITTEE
 The members of the audit committee at the date of this report are as follows:

 Mr. Lee Sen Choon (Chairman of Audit Committee and Independent Director)

 Mr. Ravindran s/o Ramasamy (Independent Director)

 Mr. Lee Teck Leng Robson (Independent Director)

 The audit committee performs the functions specified by section 201B(5) of the Companies Act, Cap.50. Among 

others, it performed the following functions:

 *  Reviewed with the independent external auditors the external audit plan;

*  Reviewed with the independent external auditors their evaluation of the company’s internal accounting 

controls, and their report on the financial statements and the assistance given by the company’s officers            

to them;

 *  Reviewed with the internal auditors the scope of results of the internal audit procedures;

*  Reviewed the financial statements of the group and the company prior to their submission to the directors of 

the company for adoption; and 

 *  Reviewed the interested person transactions (as defined in Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual of SGX).
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8. AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONT’D) 
 Other functions performed by the audit committee are described in the report on corporate governance included 

in the annual report. It also includes an explanation of how independent auditor objectivity and independence is 

safeguarded where the independent auditors provide non-audit services.

 The audit committee has recommended to the board of directors that the independent auditors, RSM Chio Lim, be 

nominated for re-appointment as independent auditors at the next annual general meeting of the company.

9. INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
 The independent auditors, RSM Chio Lim, have expressed their willingness to accept re-appointment. 

10. SUBSEQUENT DEVELOPMENTS
 There are no significant developments subsequent to the release of the group’s and the company’s preliminary 

financial statements, as announced on 14 February 2007, which would materially affect the group’s and the 

company’s operating and financial performance as of the date of this report.

ON BEHALF OF THE DIRECTORS

Dora Hoan Beng Mui     Doreen Tan Nee Moi

Director        Director

8 March 2007

Report of  
The Directors
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In the opinion of the directors, the accompanying financial statements are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view 

of the state of affairs of the group and of the company as at 31 December 2006 and the results, changes in equity and 

cash flows of the group and the changes in equity of the company for the year ended on that date and at the date of this 

statement there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall 

due.

The board of directors authorised the issue of these financial statements.

ON BEHALF OF THE DIRECTORS

Dora Hoan Beng Mui     Doreen Tan Nee Moi

Director        Director

8 March 2007

Statement 
of  Directors
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members 
of  Best World International Limited 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Best World International Limited for the year ended 31 

December 2006, which comprise the balance sheet of the group and the company as at 31 December 2006, and the 

income statement, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement of the group and statement of changes in 

equity of the company for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 

notes. 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The company’s directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 

accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act, Cap. 50 (“the Act”) and Singapore Financial Reporting 

Standards. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the 

preparation and fair preparation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 

to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are 

reasonable in the circumstances.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 

accordance with the Singapore Standards on Auditing.  Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements 

and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material 

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amount and disclosure in the financial 

statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 

material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 

auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 

in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 

opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 

accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by directors, as well as evaluating the 

overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion.
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OPINION
In our opinion,

(a)  the consolidated financial statements of the group and the balance sheet and statement of changes in equity of the 

company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, Cap. 50 (the “Act”) and 

Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and 

of the company as at 31 December 2006 and the results, changes in equity and cash flows of the group and the 

changes in equity of the company for the year ended on that date; and

(b)  the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the company and by those subsidiaries 

incorporated in Singapore of which we are the independent auditors have been properly kept in accordance with 

the provisions of the Act.

RSM Chio Lim 

Certified Public Accountants

Singapore

8 March 2007

Partner in charge of audit: Goh Swee Hong

Effective from year ended 31 December 2005
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     Group   Company

     2006 2005 2006 2005

    Notes $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

ASSETS    
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents   4 21,712 19,003 11,627 13,379
Trade and other receivables   5 15,004 9,517 18,489 9,497
Inventories    6 5,179 4,348 4,228 3,453

Total current assets    41,895 32,868 34,344  26,329

Non-current assets

Product licenses   7 2,006 524 – – 
Investment in subsidiaries   8 – – 3,122  3,137 
Investment in joint ventures   9 – – – –
Property, plant and equipment  10 8,313 6,226 3,962 2,612
Goodwill    11 320 320 – –
Other intangible assets   12 242 152 215 116
Deferred tax assets   22 100 – 100 –

Total non-current assets    10,981 7,222 7,399 5,865

Total assets    52,876 40,090 41,743 32,194

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current liabilities:

Trade and other payables    13 10,368 5,712 3,675 2,400
Income tax payable    2,779 1,994 2,166 1,345
Current portion of long-term borrowings  14 61 74 32 34
Current portion of finance leases  15 171 140 107 82

Total current liabilities    13,379 7,920 5,980 3,861

Non-current liabilities

Long-term borrowings   14 1,008 1,289 427 454
Finance leases   15 679 652 432 420
Deferred tax liabilities   22 230 163 184 117

Total non-current liabilities   1,917 2,104 1,043 991

Total liabilities    15,296 10,024 7,023 4,852

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent:

Share capital   16 17,686 4,950 17,686 4,950
Other reserves    (140) 12,690 4 12,736
Retained earnings    18,377 11,136 17,030 9,656

     35,923 28,776 34,720 27,342

Minority interest    1,657 1,290 – –

Total equity    37,580 30,066 34,720 27,342

Total liabilities and equity    52,876 40,090 41,743 32,194

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Balance Sheets
As at 31 December 2006
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Consolidated Income Statement
Year ended at 31 December 2006

        Group  

       2006  2005

      Notes $’000 $’000

Revenue      17 77,114 55,098
Cost of sales      (17,219) (12,200)

Gross profit      59,895 42,898
Financial income      18 456 151
Financial expense     18 (507) (133)
Other income       172 31
Distribution costs      (30,820) (22,083)
Administrative expenses      (13,326) (8,913)
Other charges     19 (253) (196)

Profit before income tax      15,617 11,755
Income tax expense     22 (3,110) (2,833)

Profit for the year      12,507 8,922

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the company     11,861 8,464
Minority interest      646 458

          12,507 8,922

Earnings per share for profit attributable to the 

equity holders of the company during the year 

(expressed in cents per share)

– Basic     24  7.19  5.50

– Diluted      24 7.19  5.50 

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Statements of  Changes in Equity
Year ended at 31 December 2006

  Attributable to equity holders of the company

    Foreign

    currency

  Share Share translation  Retained  Minority Total

  capital premium reserve earnings Total interests equity

  $’000 $’000 $’000  $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

 Balance at 

 1 Jan 2005 3,750 5,601 (87) 4,547 13,811 778 14,589
Foreign currency 
 translation 
 differences 
 (Net income 
 recognised directly 
 in equity) –  –  41 –  41 5 46
Net profit for the year –  –  –  8,464 8,464 458 8,922
Total recognised 

 income and 

 expense for 

 the year  –  –  41 8,464 8,505 463 8,968
Issue of shares 
 pursuant to a
 bonus issue 
 (Note 16) 750 (750) –  –  –  –  – 
Issue of shares 
 (Note 16) 450 8,100 –  –  8,550 –  8,550
Issue expenses –  (215) –  –  (215) –  (215)
Issue of shares by 
 a subsidiary –  –  –  –  –  49  49 
Dividends (Note 23) – – –  (1,875) (1,875) – (1,875)

Balance at 

 31 Dec 2005 4,950 12,736 (46) 11,136 28,776 1,290 30,066
Foreign currency 
 translation 
 differences (Net 
 loss recognised 
 directly in equity) – – (94) – (94) (18) (112)
Net profit for the year – – – 11,861 11,861 646 12,507
Total recognised 

 income and 

 expense for 

 the year  – – (94) 11,861 11,767 628 12,395
Dividends (Note 23) – – – (4,620) (4,620) – (4,620)
Dividends paid by 
 a subsidiary – – – – – (261) (261)
Transfer from share 
 premium to share 
 capital (Note16) 12,736 (12,736) – – – – –

Balance at 

 31 Dec 2006 17,686 – (140) 18,377 35,923 1,657 37,580

      (a) (a)



63

    Share Share Retained Translation

    capital premium earnings reserves Total

Company   $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Balance at 1 January 2005  3,750 5,601 4,181 –  13,532
Net profit for the year 
 (Total recognised income for the year)  – – 7,350 – 7,350
Issue of shares pursuant to 
 a bonus issue (Note 16)   750 (750) – – –
Issue of shares (Note 16)   450 8,100 – – 8,550
Issue expenses    – (215) – – (215)
Dividends (Note 23)   – – (1,875) – (1,875)

Balance at 31 December 2005  4,950 12,736 9,656 – 27,342
Net profit for the year 
 (Total recognised income for the year)  – – 11,994 – 11,994
Foreign currency translation 
 adjustment for Taiwan Branch  – – – 4 4 
Total recognised income and 

 expense for the year   – – 11,994 4 11,998
Dividends (Note 23)   – – (4,620) – (4,620)
Transfer from share premium 
 to share capital (Note 16)   12,736 (12,736) – – –

Balance at 31 December 2006  17,686 – 17,030 4 34,720

        (a)  (a)
 
(a)  Not available for distribution as cash dividends.

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Year ended at 31 December 2006

        Group  

       2006  2005

       $’000 $’000

Cash flows from operating activities:

Profit for the year      12,507 8,922
Adjustments for:
 Income tax expense       3,110 2,833
 Depreciation expense      1,002 650
 Amortisation of intangible assets     38 8
 Interest income      (456) (151)
 Interest expense      123 70
 Plant and equipment written off     156 15
 Loss on disposal of plant and equipment     64 125

Operating profit before working capital changes    16,544 12,472
 Trade and other receivables     (4,982) (4,594)
 Inventories      (831) (1,190)
  Trade and other payables      4,656 870

Cash generated from operations     15,387 7,558
 Income tax paid      (2,863) (2,049)

Net cash from operating activities     12,524 5,509

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (Note 4)    (2,571) (1,734)
Increase in intangible assets      (128) (99)
(Increase) decrease in product licenses     (1,482) 198
Decrease (increase) in cash and cash equivalents (restricted in use)   2,799 (5,088)
Disposal of plant and equipment     144 – 
Interest received      456 151

Net cash used in investing activities     (782) (6,572)

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from issuing shares     – 8,550
Issue expenses      – (215)
Decrease in short-term borrowings     – (510)
Decrease in long-term borrowings     (294) (58)
Decrease in finance leases (Note 4)     (880) (133)
Dividends paid to minority interests     (261) –
Dividends paid      (4,620) (1,875)
Interest paid      (123) (70)

Net cash (used in) from financing activities    (6,178) 5,689

Net effect of exchange rate changes in consolidating foreign subsidiaries  (29) 33

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents    5,535 4,659
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year     13,892 9,195
Effect of foreign exchange rate adjustment     (27) 38 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 4)    19,400 13,892

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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1.  GENERAL
 The company is incorporated in Singapore with limited liability. The financial statements are presented in Singapore 

dollars. They are drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, Cap. 50 and the Singapore 

Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS”). The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the 

board of directors on 8 March 2007.

 The principal activities of the company are those of investment holding and the distribution of nutritional supplement 

products, personal care products and healthcare equipment. It is listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities 

Trading Limited. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are disclosed in the note 8 to the financial statements.

 The registered office is: 1 Changi North Street 1, Lobby 2, Singapore 498789. The company is domiciled in Singapore.

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
 ACCOUNTING CONVENTION – The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention except 

where an FRS require an alternative treatment (such as fair values) as disclosed where appropriate in these      

financial statements.

 BASIS OF PRESENTATION – The consolidation accounting method is used for the consolidated financial statements 

which include the financial statements made up to the balance sheet date each year of the company and its 

subsidiaries. Consolidated financial statements are the financial statements of the group presented as those of a 

single economic entity. The consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for 

like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. All significant intragroup balances and transactions, 

including income, expenses and dividends are eliminated in full on consolidation. The proportionate consolidation 

accounting method is used for the joint ventures whereby the group’s share of each of the assets, liabilities, income 

and expense is combined on a line-by-line basis with similar items in the financial statements. The results of the 

investees acquired or disposed of during the financial year are consolidated from the respective dates of acquisition 

or up to the dates of disposal. On disposal the attributable amount of goodwill if any, is included in the determination 

of the gain or loss on disposal. 

 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 

generally accepted accounting principles requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 

the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 

the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual 

results could differ from those estimates. The estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 

Apart from those involving estimations, management has made judgements in the process of applying the entity’s 

accounting policies. The areas requiring management’s most difficult, subjective or complex judgements, or areas 

where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed at the end of this 

footnote, where applicable.
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 
 SUBSIDIARIES – A subsidiary is an entity including unincorporated and special purpose entities that are controlled 

by the group. Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits 

from its activities accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights or the ability to appoint 

or remove the majority of the members of the board of directors or to cast the majority of votes at meetings of the 

board of directors. The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible 

are considered when assessing whether the group controls another entity. In the company’s own separate financial 

statements, the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any provision for impairment in value. Impairment 

loss recognised in profit or loss for a subsidiary is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates 

used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The net book 

values of the subsidiaries are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that would be realised in a current market 

exchange. 

 JOINT VENTURES – A joint venture is a contractual arrangement with other parties to undertake an economic activity 

that is subject to joint control. In the company’s own financial statements, the investments in joint ventures are 

stated at cost less provision for impairment in value. The net book values of the joint ventures are not necessarily 

indicative of the amounts that would be realised in a current market exchange.

 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS – Business combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase method. The cost 

of a business combination includes the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or 

assumed, and equity instruments issued by the acquirer, in exchange for control of the acquiree; plus any costs 

directly attributable to the business combination. Any excess of the cost over the acquirer’s interest in the net fair 

value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities so recognised is accounted for as goodwill. The 

excess of acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities 

over cost is accounted for as “negative goodwill”. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent 

liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under FRS 103 are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition 

date, except for non-current assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with FRS 

105 Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, which are recognised and measured at fair 

value less costs to sell. After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment 

losses. Goodwill is not amortised but is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in 

circumstances indicate that it might be impaired. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. There 

was no negative goodwill. 

 Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities 

of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

 MINORITY INTERESTS – Any minority interest in the acquiree (subsidiary) is initially measured at the minority’s 

proportion of the net fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 
 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS – Cash and cash equivalents include bank and cash balances and any highly liquid 

debt instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less. Cash for the cash flow statement 
includes cash and cash equivalents less bank overdrafts payable on demand that form an integral part of cash 

management and cash subject to restriction.

 TRADE RECEIVABLES – After initial recognition at fair value, trade receivables are measured at amortised cost 

using the effective interest method except that short-duration receivables with no stated interest rate are normally 

measured at original invoice amount unless the effect of imputing interest would be significant. Trade receivables 

are stated after provision for impairment. The amount of the provision for impairment is recognised in the income 

statement. A trade receivable amount is regarded as impaired if there is objective evidence of impairment as a 

result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition and that loss event has an impact on the 

estimated future cash flows of the financial asset that can be reliably estimated. The carrying amounts of trade 

receivables are assumed to approximate their fair value. Normally no interest is charged on trade receivables.

 LOANS AND RECEIVABLES – Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 

payments that are not quoted in an active market, other than: (a) those that the entity intends to sell immediately or 

in the near term and are classified as held for trading, and those that the entity upon initial recognition designates 

as at fair value through profit or loss; (b) those that the entity upon initial recognition designates as available for 

sale; or (c) those for which the holder may not recover substantially all of its initial investment, other than because 

of credit deterioration and are classified as available for sale. After initial recognition such financial assets, including 

derivatives that are assets, are measured at their fair values, without any deduction for transaction costs that may 

be incurred on sale or other disposal, except for the non-current financial assets that are loans and receivables 

which are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less provision for impairment. These 

items are included in the balance sheet in loans and receivables as current assets or as non-current assets where 

the maturities are greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date.

 INVENTORIES – Inventories are measured at the lower of cost (first-in-first-out method) and net realisable value. 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of 

completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. A write down on cost is made for where the cost 

is not recoverable or if the selling prices have declined. Cost includes all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and 

other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. 

 INTANGIBLE ASSETS – An intangible asset that is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance is 

recognised if it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to 

the entity and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. This also applies to an internally generated intangible 

asset. Research expenditure is expensed when incurred. Development cost incurred relating to the design and 

testing of new or improved products are recognised as intangible assets when it is probable that the project will 

be viable considering its commercial and technical feasibility and its costs can be measured reliably and there are 

sufficient resources to complete development. Where no internally generated intangible asset can be recognised, 

development cost is expensed when incurred. After initial recognition, an intangible asset with finite useful life is 
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 
 carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. An intangible asset 

with an indefinite useful life is not amortised. An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, 

based on an analysis of all of the relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is 

expected to generate net cash inflows for the entity. The amortisable amount of an intangible asset with finite useful 

life is allocated on a systematic basis over the best estimate of its useful life from the point at which the asset is 

ready for use. The useful lives of trademark and licenses are as follows:

 Trademarks   – 10 years

 Product licenses  – Lower of useful life or 25 years

 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT – Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis to allocate the gross carrying 

amounts less their residual values over their estimated useful lives of each part of an item of property, plant and 

equipment. The annual rates of depreciation are as follows:

 Freehold buildings – 2%

 Leasehold properties – 1.3%

 Plant and equipment – 20%

 

 Depreciation is not provided for freehold land.

 An asset is depreciated when it is available for use until it is derecognised even if during that period the item is idle. 

Fully depreciated assets still in use are retained in the financial statements. 

 Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated 

impairment losses. The residual value and the useful life of an asset is reviewed at least at each financial year-end 

and, if expectations differ from previous estimates, the changes are accounted for as a change in an accounting 

estimate, and the depreciation charge for the current and future periods are adjusted. The gain or loss arising from 

the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the net 

disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item and is recognised in the income statement.

 Cost also includes acquisition cost, any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition 

necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Subsequent cost are recognised 

as an asset only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity 

and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income 

statement when they are incurred.

 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS – At each reporting date an assessment is made whether there is any 

indication that a depreciable or amortisable asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, an estimate is 

made of the recoverable amount of the asset. Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, an 

annual impairment test is performed at the same time every year on an intangible asset with an indefinite useful



69
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 life or an intangible asset not yet available for use. The impairment loss is the excess of the carrying amount over 

the recoverable amount and is recognised in the income statement unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued 

amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease. The recoverable amount of an asset 

or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. In assessing value in 

use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 

current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purposes of 

assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash 

flows (cash-generating units). At each reporting date non-financial assets other than goodwill with impairment loss 

recognised in prior periods are assessed for possible reversal of the impairment. An impairment loss is reversed 

only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 

determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. 

 IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS – All financial assets except those measured at fair value through profit or loss 

are subject to review for impairment. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment 

losses are incurred if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after 

the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated 

future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Losses expected 

as a result of future events, no matter how likely, are not recognised.

 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES – Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss when recognised initially are  measured 

at fair value. Financial liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value plus transaction 

costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial liability. After initial recognition 

financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, including derivatives that are financial liabilities, are measured 

at fair value. Other financial liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss are measured at amortised cost and any 

difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income 

statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Financial liabilities including bank 

and other borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless there is an unconditional right to defer settlement 

of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date. Items classified within trade and other payables 

are not usually re-measured, as the obligation is usually known with a high degree of certainty and settlement is 

short-term.

 LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS – A liability or provision is recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or 

constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits 

will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

These include trade and other payables and where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount 

recognised is the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax 

rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. 

The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)   

 LEASES AS A LESSEE – A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 

ownership of an asset. At the commencement of the lease term, a finance lease is recognised as an asset and as 

liability in the balance sheet at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, the present value of 

the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease. The discount rate used in calculating 

the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the lease, if this is practicable to 

determine; if not, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used. Any initial direct costs of the lessee are added 

to the amount recognised as an asset. The excess of the lease payments over the recorded lease liability are 

treated as finance charges which are allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant 

periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the 

periods in which they are incurred. The assets are depreciated as owned depreciable assets. Leases where the 

lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased assets are classified as 

operating leases. For operating leases, lease payments are recognised as an expense in the income statement on 

a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease unless another systematic basis is representative of 

 the time pattern of the user’s benefit, even if the payments are not on that basis. Lease incentives received are 

recognised in the income statement as an integral part of the total lease expense. 

 SHARE CAPITAL – Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of 

new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds. Where the company reacquires its 

own equity instruments as treasury shares, the consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental 

cost is deducted from equity attributable to the company’s equity holders until the shares are cancelled, reissued 

or disposed of. Where such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly 

attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to 

the company’s equity holders and no gain or loss is recognised in the income statement.

 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS – The carrying values of current financial assets and financial liabilities 

including cash, accounts receivable, short-term borrowings, accounts payable approximate their fair values due to 

the short-term maturity of these instruments. The fair values of non-current financial instruments are not disclosed 

unless there are significant items at the end of the year and in the event the fair values are disclosed in the relevant 

notes. Disclosures of fair value are not made when the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value. 

The maximum exposure to credit risk is the fair value of the financial instruments at the balance sheet date.

 REVENUE RECOGNITION – The revenue amount is the fair value of the consideration received or receivable from 

the gross inflow of economic benefits during the year arising from the course of the ordinary activities of the entity 

and it is shown net of related tax, estimated returns, discounts and volume rebates. Revenue from sale of goods is 

recognised when significant risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the buyer, there is neither continuing 

managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold 

and the amount of revenue and the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured 

reliably. Interest revenue is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest rate that takes into 

account the effective yield on the asset. Dividend revenue from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s 

right to receive the dividend is legally established. 
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 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS – The functional currency is the Singapore dollar as it reflects the primary 

economic environment in which the entity operates. Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in the functional 

currency at the rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, recorded monetary 

balances and balances measured at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are reported at the rates 

ruling at the balance sheet and fair value dates respectively. All realised and unrealised exchange adjustment gains 

and losses are dealt with in the income statement. The presentation is in the functional currency.

 FOREIGN CURRENCY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – The foreign entities determine the appropriate functional currency 

as it reflects the primary economic environment in which the entities operate. In translating the financial statements 

of a foreign branch and foreign entities for incorporation in the consolidated financial statements the assets and 

liabilities denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the company are translated at year end 

rates of exchange and the income and expense items are translated at average rates of exchange for the year. The 

resulting translation adjustments (if any) are accumulated in a separate component of equity until the disposal of 

the foreign entities.

 BORROWING COSTS – All borrowing costs that are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing 

of funds costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred except for borrowing costs 

that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset that necessarily 

take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that 

asset until substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are 

complete. The interest expense is calculated using the effective interest rate method.

 INCOME TAX – The income taxes are accounted using the asset and liability method that requires the recognition of 

taxes payable or refundable for the current year and deferred tax liabilities and assets for the future tax consequence 

of events that have been recognised in the financial statements or tax returns. The measurements of current and 

deferred tax liabilities and assets are based on provisions of the enacted or substantially enacted tax laws; the 

effects of future changes in tax laws or rates are not anticipated. Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax 

currently payable and deferred tax. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes 

levied by the same income tax authority. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance 

sheet date and is reduced, if necessary, by the amount of any tax benefits that, based on available evidence, are 

not expected to be realised. A deferred tax amount is recognised for all temporary differences, unless the deferred 

tax amount arises from (a) goodwill for which amortisation is not deductible for tax purposes; or (b) the initial 

recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which (i) is not a business combination; and (ii) at the time of the 

transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). A deferred tax liability is not recognised 

for all taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, branches and associates, and 

interests in joint ventures because (a) the company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary 

difference; and (b) it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. 
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2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)  
 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS – Certain subsidiaries operate a defined contribution provident fund scheme, in which 

employees are entitled to join upon fulfilling certain conditions. The assets of the fund are held separately from       

those of the entity in an independently administered fund. The entity contributes an amount equal to a fixed 

percentage of the salary of each participating employee. Contributions are charged to the income statement in 

the period to which they relate. This plan is in addition to the contributions to government managed retirement 

benefit plans such as the Central Provident Fund in Singapore which specifies the employer’s obligations which 

are dealt with as defined contribution retirement benefit plans. For employee leave entitlement the expected cost 

of short-term employee benefits in the form of compensated absences is recognised in the case of accumulating 

compensated absences, when the employees render service that increases their entitlement to future compensated 

absences; and in the case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur. A liability for 

bonuses is recognised where the entity is contractually obliged or where there is constructive obligation based on 

past practice.

 SEGMENT REPORTING – A business segment is a distinguishable component of an enterprise that is engaged in 

providing an individual product or service or a group of related products or services and that is subject to risks 

and returns that are different from those of other business segments. A geographical segment is a distinguishable 

component of an enterprise that is engaged in providing products or services within a particular economic 

environment and that is subject to risks and returns that are different from those of components operating in other 

economic environments. 

 CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS, ASSUMPTIONS AND ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES
 There are no critical judgements made in the process of applying the entity’s accounting policies that have the 

most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. The key assumptions concerning 

the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a significant risk 

of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are 

discussed below:

 Critical assumptions and estimation uncertainties:

 ALLOWANCES FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS – An allowance is made for doubtful accounts for estimated losses 

resulting from the subsequent inability of the customers to make required payments. If the financial conditions of the 

customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances 

may be required in future periods. Management specifically analyses accounts receivables and analyses historical 

bad debt, customer concentrations, customer creditworthiness, current economic trends and changes in customer 

payment terms when evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts. At the balance sheet date, 

the receivables are measured at fair value and their fair values might change materially within the next financial 

year but these changes would not arise from assumptions or other sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance 

sheet date.

 INVENTORY RELATED ALLOWANCES – A review is made periodically on inventory for excess inventory, obsolescence 

and declines in net realisable value below cost and record an allowance against the inventory balance for any
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  such declines. These reviews require management to estimate future demand for our products. Possible changes 

in these estimates could result in revisions to the valuation of inventory. The carrying amount of inventory at the 

balance sheet date was $5,179,000.

 ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL – The carrying amount of the group’s goodwill at 31 December 2006 

was $320,000 (2005 : $320,000). The group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment, in 

accordance with the accounting policy stated in note 2. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have 

been determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates. More details 

are provided in note 11. 

 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES FOR FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
 GENERAL RISK MANAGEMENT PRINCIPLES – The financial instruments comprise borrowings, some cash and liquid 

resources, and various other items, including trade and other receivables, trade and other payables. The main 

purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the entity’s operations. The main risks arising from the 

entity’s financial instruments are credit risk, interest risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and market price risk 

comprising interest rate and currency risk exposures. The management reviews and monitors policies for managing 

each of these risks and they are summarised below.

 CREDIT RISK ON FINANCIAL ASSETS – Financial assets that are potentially subject to concentrations of credit risk 

and failures by counterparties to discharge their obligations consist principally of cash, cash equivalents and trade 

and other accounts receivable. Credit risk on cash balances and derivative financial instruments is limited because 

the counter-parties are banks with high credit ratings. An ongoing credit evaluation is performed of the debtors’ 

financial condition and a loss from impairment is recognised in the income statement. There is no significant 

concentration of credit risk, as the exposure is spread over a large number of counter-parties and customers unless 

otherwise disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 

 OTHER RISKS ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS – The main risks arising from the entity’s financial instruments are 

interest risk, liquidity risk and foreign currency risk. The operations are financed through a mixture of retained 

earnings and borrowings. Borrowings are in the desired currencies at both fixed and floating rates of interest. The 

policy is to retain flexibility in selecting borrowings at both fixed and floating rates interest. There is exposure to 

interest rate price risk for financial instruments with a fixed interest rate and to interest rate or cash flow risk for 

financial instruments with a floating interest rate that is reset as market rates change. Interest rate swaps are not 

used to generate the desired interest profit and to manage the exposure to interest rate fluctuations. There is also 

exposure to liquidity. As regards liquidity, the policy has been to ensure continuity of funding and where necessary 

a certain percentage of the borrowings should mature in two to five years. Short-term flexibility is achieved by 

overdraft facilities. There is also exposure to changes in foreign exchange rates arising from foreign currency 

transactions and balances and changes in fair values. These exposures and changes in fair values from time to time 

are monitored and any gains and losses are included in the income statement unless otherwise stated in the notes 

to the financial statements. There is no policy to reduce currency exposures through forward currency contracts, 

derivatives transactions or other arrangements.
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3.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
 A related party is an entity or person that directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries controls, is 

controlled by, or is under common or joint control with, the entity in governing the financial and operating policies, 

or that has an interest in the entity that gives it significant influence over the entity in financial and operating 

decisions. It also includes members of the key management personnel or close members of the family of any 

individual referred to herein and others who have the ability to control, jointly control or significantly influence by or 

for which significant voting power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any such individual. This includes 

parents, subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures and post-employment benefit plans, if any. 

 Intragroup transactions and balances that have been eliminated in the consolidated financial statements are not 

disclosed as related party transactions and balances below.

 3.1 Related parties:

 There are transactions and arrangements between the company and related parties and the effects of these on 

the basis determined between the parties are reflected in these financial statements. The current related party 

balances are unsecured, without fixed repayment terms and interest unless stated otherwise. For non-current 

balances an interest is imputed based on the prevailing market interest rate for similar debt less the interest rate if 

any provided in the agreement for the balance. The transactions were not significant.

 3.2 Key management compensation: 

        Group  

       2006  2005

       $’000 $’000

  Salaries and other short-term employee benefits     2,775 2,074

 The above amounts are included under employee benefits expense. Included in the above amounts is the following 

item:
       2006  2005

       $’000 $’000

  Directors’ remuneration of directors of the company     2,271 1,686

 Further information about the remuneration of individual directors is provided in the report on corporate 

governance.

 Key management personnel are directors and those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, 

directing and controlling the activities of the company, directly or indirectly. The above amounts for key management 

compensation are for all the directors and four other key management personnel. 
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3.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D)
 3.3 Other payables to related parties:

 The movements in other payables to related parties are as follows:

        Directors  

       2006  2005

 Other Payables      $’000 $’000

  Balance at beginning of year      – (768)
  Amounts paid during the year     – 768

  Balance at end of year      – –

4.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

     Group   Company

     2006 2005 2006 2005

     $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

  Not restricted in use    19,400 13,892 9,533 8,291
  Restricted (a)    2,312 5,111 2,094 5,088 
        21,712 19,003 11,627 13,379

  Interest earning balances   12,250 13,885 10,413 13,290

 (a)  This is for fixed deposit pledged to a bank to secure banker guarantee given to a third party and banking  

 facilities granted to the company.

 The rate of interest for the cash on interest earning accounts is between 0.7% and 0.8% (2005 : 0.7% and 0.8%) per 

year. These approximate the weighted effective interest rate.

 A Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated cash flow statement.

 The item comprises the following balance sheet amounts:
        Group  

       2006  2005

       $’000 $’000

  As shown above      21,712 19,003
  Cash restricted in use over 3 months     (2,312) (5,111)

  Cash and cash equivalents as stated    19,400 13,892

 B Non-cash transactions.

  During the year the group acquired plant and equipment with an aggregate cost of approximately $3,509,000     

(2005 : $2,082,000) of which $938,000 (2005 : $348,000) was acquired by means of finance leases. Cash 

payments of $2,571,000 (2005 : $1,734,000) were made to purchase plant and equipment. 
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5.  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 

     Group   Company

     2006 2005 2006 2005

     $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

  Trade receivables

  Outside parties    12,101 5,512 1,001 878
  Subsidiaries (Notes 3 and 8)   – – 8,919 3,542
  Less: provision for impairment    (115) (5) (603) –

  Other receivables and prepayments:

  Deposits    2,095 770 1,787 420
  Subsidiaries (Notes 3 and 8)   – – 7,414 1,855 
  Advances to suppliers    – 331 – –
   Tax recoverable    505 – – –
  Share application monies (a)   – 2,673 – 2,673
  Other receivables    291 109 182 77
  Prepayments    138 127 66 52
  Less: provision for impairment   (11) – (277) –

        15,004 9,517 18,489 9,497

  Movements in above provision:

  Balance at beginning of year   5 5 – –
  Charge for trade receivables to 
   income statement included in financial expense  110 – 603 –
  Charge for other receivables to 
   income statement included in financial expense  11 – 277 –

  Balance at end of year   126 5  880 –

  Analysis of above amounts denominated 

   in foreign currencies:

  United States Dollars    31 2,793 31 120
  Malaysian Ringgits    3,292 1,511 – –
  Brunei Dollars    11 – – –
   Indonesian Rupiah    6,144 – – –
   Thai Bahts    73 84 – –
  Hong Kong Dollars    121 89 – –

(a)  This relates to monies for the application to increase the paid up capital of subsidiary Best World Lifestyle   

(Shanghai) Co., Ltd by S$ 2.67 million (RMB 12.9 million). The application was approved on 6 January 2006.
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5.  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D) 

     Group   Company

     2006 2005 2006 2005

     $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

  Concentration of trade receivable customers:   
  Top 1 customer    1,274 692 568 692
  Top 2 customers    2,315 824 760 824
  Top 3 customers    3,239 846 782 846

 The average credit period generally granted to trade receivable customers is about 30 days (2005 : 30 days). 

 Current receivables with a short duration are not discounted and the carrying values are assumed to be a reasonable 

approximation of fair value.

6.  INVENTORIES
     Group   Company

     2006 2005 2006 2005

     $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

  Finished goods for resale   5,179 4,348 4,228 3,453

  
  Inventories are stated after provision. 
  Movements in provision:
  Balance at beginning of year   (74) (18) (74) (18)
  Charged to income statement 
   included in other charges   – (56) – (56)

  Balance at end of year   (74) (74) (74) (74)

  Increase in inventories of finished goods  (831) (1,190) (775) (1,009)

  Cost of purchases    18,050 13,390 15,928 13,113

7.  PRODUCT LICENSES
     Group   Company

     2006 2005 2006 2005

     $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

  Product licenses, at cost   2,006 524 – –
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7.  PRODUCT LICENSES (CONT’D) 
 The company entered into an asset sale and purchase agreement dated 16 January 2004, as supplemented by 

Supplemental Agreement dated 16 February 2004 (the “Vigor Acqusition Agreement”) with Chengdu Weige’er Stock 

Holding Co., Ltd and Chengdu Tonglian Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd to acquire 20 product licences, inventories and all 

the trademarks in respect of the range of nutritional supplements sold and marketed in the People’s Republic of 

China (“PRC”) for the past 5 years under the brand “Vigor”. The consideration payable in respect of this acquisition 

is approximately but not more than RMB20 million (S$4.2 million).

 On 6 April 2004, the company, Best World China Investments Pte. Ltd. (‘’BWC’’), Chengdu Weige’er Stock Holding 

Co., Ltd and Chengdu Tonglian Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd entered into an agreement to novate all the ultimate holding 

company’s rights, interest and obligations under the Vigor Acquisition Agreement to BWC.

 On 9 August 2005, BWC, Best World Lifestyle (Shanghai) Co., Ltd, Chengdu Weige’er Stock Holding Co., Ltd and 

Chengdu Tonglian Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd entered into an agreement to novate the company’s right, interest and 

obligation under the Vigor Acquisition Agreement to Best World Lifestyle (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

 Best World Lifestyle (Shanghai) Co., Ltd (“BWL Shanghai”) completed the acquisition under the Vigor Acquisition 

Agreement during 2006 and acquired 16 product licenses from the vendor. Four product licences and certain 

inventories stated in the agreement were not transferred to BWL Shanghai. The net consideration for the acquisition 

of the 16 product licenses amounted to RMB10.03 million (S$2.0 million).

 The useful lives of the product licenses is estimated to be 25 years. Amortisation of the product licenses cost 

will commence when the products under the product licenses commence trading in 2007. An impairment test is 

performed at each reporting date and an impairment loss is recognised in the income statement if the carrying 

amount exceeded the recoverable amount of the product licenses.

8.  INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

        Company  

       2006  2005

       $’000 $’000

  Unlisted equity shares at cost     3,174 3,137
  Less provision for impairment     (52) –

          3,122 3,137

  Analysis of above amounts denominated in foreign currencies:
  Malaysian Ringgits      1,753 1,753
  Thai Bahts      – 11
  Indonesian Rupiah      115 115
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8.  INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D) 

 The subsidiaries held by the company and its subsidiary are listed below:
          Percentage 

      Cost of the  of  equity held

      investments   by group  

 Name of subsidiaries, country of incorporation,  2006  2005 2006  2005

 place of operations and principal activities  $’000 $’000 % %

  Best World Lifestyle Pte Ltd (a)   1,251 1,251 100 100
  Singapore
  Distribution of cosmetics, skin care, nutritional
   supplements, personal care products 
   and healthcare equipment

  Avance Living Pte. Ltd. (a)   4 4 100 100
  Singapore
  Distribution of nutritional supplements, 
   personal care products and healthcare equipment

  Institute of BWL Pte. Ltd. (a)   3 3 100 100
  Singapore
  Provision of courses for beauty therapy. 
   Inactive during the year

  Best World Lifestyle Sdn. Bhd. (b)   1,753 1,753 70 70
  Malaysia
  Import and distribution of cosmetics, 
   skin care, nutritional supplements, personal care 
   products and healthcare equipment

  PT Best World Indonesia (c)   115 115 70 70
  Indonesia
  Import and distribution of cosmetics skin care, 
   nutritional supplements, personal care products 
   and healthcare equipment.

  BWL (Thailand) Company Limited (d) (i)  48 11 49 49
  Thailand
  Import and distribution of cosmetics, 
   skin care, nutritional supplements, personal care 
   products and healthcare equipment

  Best World China Investments Pte. Ltd. (a)  * * 95 70
  Singapore
  Investment holding company

  Best World Lifestyle (HK) Company Limited (e)  * * 100 100
  Hong Kong
  Distribution of cosmetics, skin care, 
   nutritional supplements, personal care 
   products and healthcare equipment 
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8.  INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D) 

          Percentage 

      Cost in books  of  equity held

      of company   by group  

 Name of subsidiaries, country of incorporation,  2006  2005 2006  2005

 place of operations and principal activities  $’000 $’000 % %

  BBWL Sdn Bhd (f)    * – 100 –
  Brunei
  Import and distribution of cosmetics skin care, 
   nutritional supplements, personal care 
   products and healthcare equipment.
   (Incorporated on 23 October 2006)

  Best World Lifestyle Pty Ltd (g)   * – 100 –
  Australia
  Import and distribution of cosmetics skin care, 
   nutritional supplements, personal care 
   products and healthcare equipment.
   (Incorporated on 11 August 2006)   

        3,174 3,137

  Held through Best World China Investments Pte. Ltd. 

  Best World Lifestyle (Shanghai) Co., Ltd (h)  3,006 333 95 70
  People’s Republic of China
  Import and distribution of cosmetics skin care, 
   nutritional supplements, personal care 
   products and healthcare equipment. 
   Has not commenced commercial operations.

  (a) Audited by RSM Chio Lim, a member of RSM International. 

  (b) Audited by Horwath Malaysia.

  (c) Audited by RSM AAJ Associates, a member of RSM International.

  (d) Audited by RSM Nelson Wheeler (Thailand) Limited, a member of RSM International.

  (e) Audited by RSM Nelson Wheeler, a member of RSM International.

  (f) Audited by Lee & Raman.

  (g) Audited by DL&P Pty Ltd.

  (h)  Audited by Shu Lun Pan Certified Public Accountants Co., Ltd.
 
  (i)  The group considers the company as subsidiary of the group as the group has management control over the   
   company through a shareholders’ agreement.

  * Denotes amount less than $1,000.
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9.  INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES

       Group and Company

       2006 2005

       $’000 $’000

  Unlisted equity shares at cost     – 651
  Less costs written off      – (651)

  Net book value of investment in joint venture    – – 

  Movement in provision for impairment     
  Balance at begining of year     651 651
  Written off against cost of investment     (651) –

  Balance at end of year      – –

         Percentage 

        of  equity held

                       Cost of investment   by group  

  Name of joint ventures, country of incorporation,  2006 2005 2006  2005

 place of operations and principal activities  $’000 $’000 %  %

  Shanghai Best World Cosmetics Co., Ltd (a)  – 651 – 60
  People’s Republic of China
  Production and distribution of cosmetics 
   and skincare equipment. Dormant.

  Tianjin Best World Esthetique Laboratories Co., Ltd  – – – 50
  People’s Republic of China
  Distribution of natural nutritional and 
   healthcare products, disinfectants, 
   chemical products and the development, 
   production, sale and provision of after-sales 
   services of relevant medical equipment. Dormant.  

        – 651

 (a) Shanghai Best World Cosmetics Co., Ltd is classified as a joint venture company as the investor holding 40%  

 interest in the joint venture company has joint control over the joint venture company.

 The financial statements of Shanghai Best World Cosmetics Co. Ltd and Tianjin Best World Esthetique Laboratories 

Co. Ltd are not included in the consolidated financial statements and are not audited as both companies have not 

renewed their business registration licenses, and have been dormant since 2002. The company has obtained legal 

opinions from lawyers in the People’s Republic of China, and was advised that the companies are deemed to have 

been deregistered upon the non-renewal of their respective business licenses. 
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10.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

    Freehold Freehold Plant and Leasehold  

    land building equipment properties Total

 Group   $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

  Cost:
  At beginning of year 1 January 2005  847 400 2,574 2,069 5,890
  Additions   – – 2,082 – 2,082
  Disposals   – – (390) – (390)
  Foreign exchange adjustments   – – 6 15 21

   At end of year 31 December 2005  847 400 4,272 2,084 7,603

  
  Accumulated depreciation:
  At beginning of year 1 January 2005  – 96 881 3 980
  Depreciation for the year  – 8 640 2 650
  Disposals   – – (256) – (256)
  Foreign exchange adjustments  – – 3 – 3

  At end of year 31 December 2005  – 104 1,268 5 1,377

  Net book value:
  At end of year 31 December 2005  847 296 3,004 2,079 6,226

  Cost:
  At beginning of year 1 January 2006  847 400 4,272 2,084 7,603
   Additions   68 –  3,238  203 3,509
  Disposals   – – (705) – (705)
  Foreign exchange adjustments   – – (52) (8) (60)

   At end of year 31 December 2006  915 400 6,753 2,279 10,347

  Accumulated depreciation:
  At beginning of year 1 January 2006  – 104 1,268 5 1,377
  Reclassification   – – (32) 32 –
  Depreciation for the year  – 8 962 32 1,002
  Disposals   – – (341) – (341)
  Foreign exchange adjustments  – – (4) – (4)

  At end of year 31 December 2006  – 112 1,853 69 2,034

  Net book value:
  At end of year 31 December 2006  915 288 4,900 2,210 8,313
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10.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D) 

     Freehold Freehold Plant and  

     land building equipment Total

 Company    $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

  Cost:
  At beginning of year 1 January 2005   847 400 1,130 2,377
  Additions    – – 1,098 1,098
  Disposals    – – (174) (174)

  At end of year 31 December 2005   847 400 2,054 3,301

  Accumulated depreciation:
  At beginning of year 1 January 2005   – 96 420 516
  Depreciation for the year   – 8 265 273
  Disposals    – – (100) (100)

  At end of year 31 December 2005   – 104 585 689

  Net book value:  
  At end of year 31 December 2005   847 296 1,469 2,612

  Cost:
  At beginning of year 1 January 2006   847 400 2,054 3,301
  Additions    – – 2,019 2,019
  Disposals    – – (360) (360)
  Foreign exchange adjustment   – – (28) (28)

  At end of year 31 December 2006   847 400 3,685 4,932

  Accumulated depreciation:
  At beginning of year 1 January 2006   – 104 585 689
  Depreciation for the year   – 8 455 463
  Disposals    – – (179) (179)
  Foreign exchange adjustment   – – (3) (3)

  At end of year 31 December 2006   – 112 858 970

  Net book value:
  At end of year 31 December 2006   847 288 2,827 3,962

 Certain items are under finance lease agreements (Note 15). The freehold land and building of the company and 

leasehold properties of the subsidiary are mortgaged to banks to secure direct facilities granted by the banks   

(Note 14).

 The depreciation expense is charged to administrative expenses in the income statement.
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11.  GOODWILL

        Group  

       2006  2005

       $’000 $’000

  Cost:
  At beginning and end of year     320 320

 Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. Each of those cash-generating 

units represents the group’s investment in each subsidiary as follows: 

       2006  2005

       $’000 $’000

  Name of subsidiaries:
  Best World Lifestyle Sdn. Bhd. (“BWLSB”)    314 314
  BWL (Thailand) Company Limited (“BWLT”)    6 6

  Cost as at end of year      320 320

 The goodwill was tested for impairment at the end of the year. An impairment loss is the amount by which the 

carrying amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit (‘’CGU’’) exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable 

amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less cost to sell or its value in use. The 

recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determined based on the value in use method. 

 The value in use was determined by management. The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are as 

follows:

 2006 2005

 1. Estimated discount rates using pre-tax rates that  9.0 % for  9.0 % for 

 reflect current market assessments at the risks BWLSB and BWLT BWLSB and BWLT 

  specific to the CGUs.  activities activities

 2. Growth rates based on industry growth forecasts  3.0 % 3.0 %

  and not exceeding the average long-term growth    

 rate for the relevant markets.

 3. Cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent  5 years 5 years

  financial budgets approved by management for

  the next five years.
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12.  OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
    
 Group Company

     2006 2005 2006 2005

 Trade marks    $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

   Cost:
  At beginning of year 1 January    169 70 133 70
  Additions    128 99 125 63

  At end of year 31 December    297 169 258 133

  
  Accumulated amortisation:
  At beginning of year 1 January    17 9 17 9
  Amortisation for the year    38 8 26 8

  At end of year 31 December    55 17 43 17

  Net book value:
  At end of year 31 December    242 152 215 116

 The amortisation expense is charged to administrative expenses in the income statement.

13.  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 
    
 Group Company

     2006 2005 2006 2005

     $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

  Trade payables
  Outside parties and accrued liabilities   9,602 5,259 2,938 1,736
  Subsidiaries (Notes 3 and 8)   – – 194 –

        9,602 5,259 3,132 1,736

  Other payables:
  Subsidiaries (Note 3)    – – 271 463
  Other payables    766 453 272 201

        10,368 5,712 3,675 2,400

  Analysis of above amounts denominated
   in foreign currencies:
  United States Dollars    1,348 391 1,348 391
  Japanese Yen    2 14 2 14
  New Zealand Dollars    11 31 11 31
  Indonesian Rupiah    2,085 35 – –
  Hong Kong Dollars    114 32 7 –
  Malaysian Ringgits    788 1,535 – –
  Thai Bahts    741 33 – –
  Brunei Dollars    109 – – –

 The average credit period taken to settle trade payables is about 30 days (2005 : 30 days). The other payables are 

with short-term durations. The carrying amounts are assumed to be a reasonable approximation of fair values.
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14.  LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

 Group Company

     2006 2005 2006 2005

     $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

  Bank loans (secured)    1,069 1,363 459 488

  
  The bank loans (secured) are repayable as follows:
  Current portion    61 74 32 34

  Non-current portion    1,008 1,289 427 454

        1,069 1,363 459 488

  The non-current portion is repayable as follows:
  Due within 2 to 5 years    267 320 141 145
  After 5 years    741 969 286 309

  Total non-current portion   1,008 1,289 427 454

  Analysis of the above amount denominated   
   in foreign currency:
  Malaysian ringgits    – 245 – –

  The weighted effective interest rates
  paid were as follows:
  Bank loans    4.5% 3.6% 3.0% 2.8%

 The exposure of the borrowings to interest rate changes and the contractual repricing dates at the balance sheet 

dates are as follows:

  Below 6 months    31 37 16 17
  Within 6 to 12 months     30 37 16 17
  Within 2 to 5 years     267 320 141 145
  Over 5 years     741 969 286 309

  Total borrowings    1,069 1,363 459 488

 The Singapore dollar bank loans are secured by joint and several guarantees from certain directors and the legal 

mortgage of the company and a subsidiary’s properties. The bank loans are repayable within 15 to 20 years from 

May 1996 and December 2004. The floating interest rates ranged from 3.0% to 4.25% per year. The bank loans in 

Malaysian ringgits are repayable within 15 years from 31 May 2004. The book value of long-term debt approximate 

the fair value.
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15. FINANCE LEASES LIABILITIES
  

      Minimum Finance Present

      payments charges value

 Group     $’000 $’000 $’000

  2006
  Minimum lease payments payable:
  Due within one year     201 (30) 171
  Due within 2 to 5 years     742 (110) 632
   Due after 5 years     59 (12) 47

  Total      1,002 (152) 850

  Net book value of plant and equipment under finance leases    1,106

      Minimum Finance Present

      payments charges value

      $’000 $’000 $’000

  2005
  Minimum lease payments payable:
  Due within one year     166 (26) 140
  Due within 2 to 5 years     644 (100) 544
  Due after 5 years     129 (21) 108

  Total      939 (147) 792

  Net book value of plant and equipment under finance leases    805

      Minimum Finance Present

      payments charges value

 Company     $’000 $’000 $’000

  2006
  Minimum lease payments payable:
  Due within one year     127 (20) 107
  Due within 2 to 5 years     467 (75) 392
  Due after 5 years     49 (9) 40

  Total      643 (104) 539

  Net book value of plant and equipment under finance leases    667
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15. FINANCE LEASES LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

      Minimum Finance Present

      payments charges value

      $’000 $’000 $’000

  2005
  Minimum lease payments payable:
  Due within one year     98 (16) 82
  Due within 2 to 5 years     384 (64) 320
  Due after 5 years     122 (22) 100

  Total      604 (102) 502

  Net book value of plant and equipment under finance leases    516

 It is the group’s policy to lease certain of its plant and equipment under finance leases. The average lease term is 

about 7 years. The rate of interest for finance leases is about 2.9% to 3.7% (2005 : 2.2% to 3.5%) per year.  Interest 

rates are fixed at the contract date. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been 

entered into for contingent rental payments. All leases obligations are denominated in Singapore dollar. The fair 

value of the lease obligations approximates to their carrying amount. The obligations under finance leases are 

secured by the lessor’s charge over the leased assets.

16.  SHARE CAPITAL

       Number Issued

       of shares share capital

       $’000 $’000

  Ordinary shares of no par value:
  Balance at end of year 1 January 2005     125,000 3,750
  Issue of bonus shares (a)     25,000 750
  Issue of shares at $0.57 each (b)     15,000 450

  Balance at end of year 31 December 2005     165,000 4,950
  Transfer of share premium balance     – 12,736

  Balance at end of year 31 December 2006     165,000 17,686

  During the year ended 31 December 2005, the company:

(a)  issued 25,000,000 new ordinary shares by way of a bonus issue on the basis of 1 bonus share for every 5 

existing ordinary shares by way of capitalisation of $750,000 from the share premium account; and 

(b)  issued 15,000,000 new ordinary shares in the capital of the company for cash at $0.57 each pursuant to a 

placement exercise.
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16.  SHARE CAPITAL (CONT’D) 

 With the changes to the Companies Act, Cap. 50, effective from 30 January 2006, there is the removal of the 

concept of par value and authorised capital and there is no share premium account. The company had a share 

premium account balance of $12,736,000 at 31 December 2005. This amount has now been included in share 

capital as required by the change to the Companies Act. The ordinary shares of no par value carry no right to fixed 

income and are fully paid. The company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

17.  REVENUE

        Group  

       2006  2005

       $’000 $’000

  Sale of goods      77,114 55,098

18.  FINANCIAL INCOME AND (EXPENSE)

        Group  

       2006  2005

       $’000 $’000

  Provision for impairment on trade receivables    (110) –
  Provision for impairment on other receivables    (11) –
  Foreign exchange transaction losses     (263) (63)
  Interest income       456 151
   Interest expense      (123) (70)

          (51) 18

  Presented in the income statement as:
  Financial income      456 151
  Financial expense      (507) (133)

  Financial income and (expense) net     (51) 18

19. OTHER CHARGES
  

        Group  

       2006  2005

       $’000 $’000

  Plant and equipment written off     (156) (15)
  Loss on disposal of plant and equipment    (64) (125)
  Inventories written down      – (56)
  Incorporation expense      (33) –

          (253) (196)
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20.  ITEMS IN THE INCOME STATEMENT
 In addition to the charges and credits disclosed elsewhere in the notes to the financial statements, this item 

includes the following charges:

        Group  

       2006  2005

       $’000 $’000

  Non audit fee to auditors of the company    10 11

21.  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

        Group  

       2006  2005

       $’000 $’000

  Employee benefits expense including directors    6,073 4,205
  Contribution to defined contribution plan    367 229

  Total employee benefits expense     6,440 4,434

22.  INCOME TAX 

        Group  

       2006  2005

       $’000 $’000

  Current       3,143 2,752
  Deferred       (33) 81

  Total tax expense      3,110 2,833

 The income tax expense varied from the amount of income tax expense determined by applying the Singapore 

income tax rate of 20% (2005 : 20%) to profit before income tax as a result of the following differences:

        Group  

       2006  2005

       $’000 $’000

  Profit before tax      15,617 11,755

  
  Income tax expense at the statutory rate    3,123 2,351
  Non-allowable items      420 299
  Tax exemptions      (548) (21)
  Deferred tax assets valuation allowance    (22) 32
  Double taxation relief      (45) –
  Over provision in prior years     (19) (23) 
  Effect of different tax rates in different countries    197 186
  Other items less than 3% each     4 9

  Total income tax expense     3,110 2,833
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22. INCOME TAX (CONT’D)
 The net deferred tax amount in the balance sheet is as follows:
    
  Net change  
  in consolidated

 Balance Sheet income statement

     2006 2005 2006 2005

 Group    $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

  Deferred tax liabilities:
  Excess of net book value of plant and equipment  (230) (165) (65) (79)

  Total deferred tax liabilities   (230) (165) (65) (79)

  Deferred tax assets:
  Tax loss carryforwards    276 176 100 16
  Unabsorbed wear and tear allowances   9 33 (24) 23
  Other temporary differences   – – – (9) 
  Deferred tax assets allowance   (185) (207) 22 (32)

  Total deferred tax assets   100 2 98 (2)

  Net total of deferred tax liabilities   (130) (163) 33 (81)
    
  Net change  
  in consolidated

 Balance Sheet income statement

     2006 2005 2006 2005

 Company    $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

  Deferred tax liabilities:
  Excess of net book value of plant and equipment  (163) (117) (46) (56)

  Presented in the balance sheet as follows:

 Group Company

     2006 2005 2006 2005

     $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

  Deferred tax liabilities    (230) (163) (184) (117)
  Deferred tax assets    100 – 100 –

  Net position    (130) (163) (84) (117)

 An allowance is made to the extent that it is not probable that taxable profit will be available against which the 

unused tax loss carryforwards can be utilised. The realisation of the future income tax benefits from tax loss 

carryforwards and temporary differences from capital allowances is available for an unlimited future period subject 

to the conditions imposed by the law including the retention of majority shareholders as defined. Where provision 

for deferred tax arising from temporary differences has been offset against the above tax loss carryforwards, such 

provision for deferred tax will be required to be set up when the tax losses are utilised in the future. The deferred 

tax amount are not expected to be used within one year.

 There is no income tax consequences of dividends to shareholders of the company.

 Temporary differences arising in connection with interest in subsidiaries are insignificant.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 December 2006

23.  DIVIDENDS
          

       2006  2005

       $’000 $’000

  Final one-tier tax scheme dividend paid of 0.231 cents per share    – 289
  Final dividend paid of 0.069 cents net of tax per share   – 86
  Interim one-tier tax scheme dividend paid of 1.2 cents 

  (2005 : 1.0 cents) per share     1,980 1,500
  Final one-tier tax scheme dividend paid of 0.6 cents per share   990 –
  Special one-tier tax scheme dividend paid of 1.0 cents per share   1,650 –

          4,620 1,875

 In respect of the current year, the directors propose that a final tax exempt dividend, of 1.3 cents per share totalling 

$2,145,000 be paid to shareholders after the annual general meeting. There are no income tax consequences. This 

dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the next annual general meeting and has not been included as a 

liability in these financial statements. The proposed dividend for 2006 is payable in respect of all shares in issue at 

the balance sheet date and including the new shares, if any, issued up to the date the dividend becomes payable.

24.  EARNINGS PER SHARE
 The earnings per share is calculated by dividing the group’s profit attributable to shareholders by the weighted 

number of shares in issue during the year.
          

       2006  2005

       $’000 $’000

  The calculation of the earnings per share is based on the following:
  Profit for the year attributable to the equity holders 
   of the Company      11,861 8,464

  Number of shares
  Weighted average number of ordinary shares after adjusting 
   for the effect for the bonus shares for the purposes 
   of basic and diluted earnings per share    165,000,000 153,750,000
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25.  OPERATING LEASE PAYMENT COMMITMENTS
 At the balance sheet date the total of future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are 

as follows:

 Group Company

     2006 2005 2006 2005

     $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

  Not later than one year    736 736 597 197
  Later than one year and not later than five years  2,295 887 980 243

  Rental for the year    1,606 537 437 253

 

 Operating lease payments represent rentals payable for certain office premises and retail outlets. The lease rental 

terms are negotiated for an average term of three years.

26.  CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
 Estimated amounts committed at the balance sheet date for future capital expenditure but not recognised in the 

financial statements are as follows:

 Group Company

     2006 2005 2006 2005

     $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

  Commitment to purchase of plant and equipment  304 – 304 –
  Commitment to acquire intangible assets   – 2,330 – –
  Commitment to take up shares in 
   Best World Lifestyle Shanghai Co., Ltd  – 2,673 – 2,673
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27.  FINANCIAL INFORMATION BY SEGMENTS
 For management purposes, the group is currently organised into three market segments and form the basis on 

which the group reports its primary segment information.

 Principal activities are as follows:

(a) Direct Selling segment. This segment comprises sales to customers through direct selling channel in 

Singapore, Malaysia, Indonesia, Hong Kong, Taiwan and Thailand;

(b) Retail segment. This segment comprises sales to retail customers through retailers in Singapore; and

(c) Export segment. This segment comprises sales to overseas distributors.

 The following tables present the segment for each of the two years covered under this report:

 Business segments

 Group Group

 2006 2005

 $ $

   Direct     Direct

   Selling Retail  Export Elimination Total Selling Retail Export Elimination Total

 Revenue
 External sales 
  and services  76,622 136 356 – 77,114 54,290 176 632 – 55,098
 Inter-segment 
  revenue 32,292 42 – (32,334) – 22,505 109 – (22,614) – 

 Total revenue 
  from 
  operations 108,914 178 356 (32,334) 77,114 76,795 285 632 (22,614) 55,098

 Segment results 16,532 (646) 35  15,921 11,997 (96) 32  11,933

 Other charges (189) (54) (10)  (253) (192) (1) (3)  (196)
  Financial income     456     151 
 Financial expense     (507)     (133)

 Profit before
   income tax     15,617     11,755
 Income tax 
  expenses     (3,110)     (2,833)

 Profit after 
  income tax     12,507     8,922

 Other information:
 Depreciation 987 10 5  1,002 632 10 8  650 
 Amortisation 38 – –  38 8 – –  8 
 Property, plant and 
  equipment 
  additions – 
  unallocated     3,509     2,082
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27.  FINANCIAL INFORMATION BY SEGMENTS (CONT’D)
 Business segments (cont’d) 

 Group Group

 2006 2005

 $ $

   Direct     Direct

   Selling Retail  Export Elimination Total Selling Retail Export Elimination Total

 Intangible assets 
  and product 
  licenses
  additions – 
  unallocated     1,610     99 
 
 Balance sheet
 Segment assets 25,082 129 94  25,305 9,904 878 281  11,063
 Unallocated 
  assets     27,571     29,027

 Total Group 
  assets     52,876     40,090

 
 Segment liabilities 10,278 50 50  10,378 5,590 55 66  5,711
 Unallocated 
  liabilities     4,918     4,313

 Total Group
  liabilities     15,296     10,024

 Geographical segments

 The group’s operations are located in Singapore, Malaysia, Indonesia, Taiwan, Hong Kong and Thailand. The group’s 

direct selling operates in Singapore, Malaysia, Thailand, Hong Kong, Taiwan and Indonesia. The retail division 

operates in Singapore. The export division operates in Singapore and sells to customers located in countries such 

as Thailand, Malaysia, Hong Kong and Brunei.

 The following table provides an analysis of the group revenue by geographical markets which are analysed based 

on the location of each individual customer:

  
 Sales revenue by

 Geographical market

       2006 2005

       $’000 $’000

  Singapore      24,037 17,987 
   Malaysia      32,369 22,971
  Indonesia      17,550 –
  Other countries (1)      3,158 14,140

          77,114 55,098

 
 (1) Other countries comprise mainly Thailand, Hong Kong, Taiwan and Brunei.
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27.  FINANCIAL INFORMATION BY SEGMENTS (CONT’D)
 Geographical segments (cont’d) 

 The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets and additions to property, plant and equipment 

and intangibles analysed by the geographical area in which the assets are located:

  Additions to Additions to  
 Carrying amount of property, plant and intangible assets and

 Segment assets equipment product licenses

   2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005

   $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

  Singapore   30,204 32,217 2,515 1,632 125 63
  Malaysia  10,730 6,749 720 296 – –
  Indonesia  7,678 – 47 – – – 
  Other countries  4,264 1,124 227 154 1,485 36

      52,876 40,090 3,509 2,082 1,610 99

28.  CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
 For the year ended 31 December 2006 the following new or revised Singapore Financial Reporting Standards were 

adopted for the first time. The new or revised standards did not require any modification of the measurement 

method or the presentation in the financial statements.  

  FRS No. Title

  FRS 1  Presentation of Financial Statements
  FRS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
  FRS 19 Employee Benefits – Amendments relating to actuarial gains and losses, group plans 
       and disclosures 
  FRS 21  The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates – Amendments relating to net investment 
       in a foreign operation 
  FRS 24 Related Party Disclosures
  FRS 32  Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation
  FRS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
  FRS 38 Intangible Assets
  FRS 39  Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement – Amendments relating to cash flow 
        hedge accounting of forecast intragroup transactions Amendments relating to financial 
       guarantee contracts 
  FRS 101 First-time Adoption of Financial Reporting Standards – Amendments relating to 
       comparative disclosures for FRS 106 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources (*)
  FRS 101 Implementation Guidance (*)
  FRS 104 Insurance Contracts (*)
  FRS 104  Implementation Guidance (*)
  FRS 106 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources (*)
  INT FRS 104 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease (*)
  INT FRS 105 Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, Restoration and Environmental 
       Rehabilitation Funds (*)
  INT FRS 107  Applying the Restatement Approach under FRS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary 
       Economies (*)
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28.  CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (CONT’D)

  FRS No.  Title

  INT FRS 108 Scope of FRS 102 
  INT FRS 109 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives 
  INT FRS 110 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

  (*)  Not relevant to the entity.

29.  FUTURE CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
 The following new or revised Singapore Financial Reporting Standards that have been issued will be effective in 

future. The transfer to the new or revised standards from the effective dates is not expected to have a material 

impact on the financial statements. 

         Effective date for

         periods beginning

  FRS No. Title on or after

  FRS 1    Presentation of Financial Statements –      1.1.2007 
        Amendments relating to capital disclosures 
  FRS 10   Events after the Balance Sheet Date     1.1.2007
  FRS 12   Income Taxes       1.1.2007
  FRS 14   Segment Reporting      1.1.2007
  FRS 17   Leases       1.1.2007
  FRS 19   Employee Benefits      1.1.2007
  FRS 32   Financial Instruments: Presentation     1.1.2007
  FRS 33   Earnings per Share      1.1.2007
  FRS 39   Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement    1.1.2007
  FRS 39   Implementation Guidance      1.1.2007
  FRS 40   Investment Property      1.1.2007
  FRS 101    First–time Adoption of Financial Reporting Standards    1.1.2007
  FRS 101   Implementation Guidance      1.1.2007
  FRS 102   Share–based Payment       1.1.2007
  FRS 103   Business Combinations      1.1.2007
  FRS 104   Insurance Contracts (*)      1.1.2007
  FRS 104   Implementation Guidance – Revisions relating to FRS 107     1.1.2007
        Financial Instruments: Disclosures
  FRS 107   Financial Instruments: Disclosures – Implementation Guidance    1.1.2007
  FRS 108   Operating Segments      1.1.2009
  INT FRS 105  Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, Restoration    1.1.2007
        and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds (*)
  INT FRS 111   FRS 102 – Group and Treasury Share Transactions     1.3.2007
  INT FRS 112   Service Concessions Arrangements (*)     1.1.2008

(*)  Not relevant to the entity.
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Major Properties 
Held For Investment

Location Description Existing Use Tenure of Land

37 Kallang Pudding Road 10-Storey Building Packaging facility/ Freehold 

Block B Tong Lee Building  Warehouse land

#05-03/04

Singapore 349315

Block 726 Ang Mo Kio Avenue 6, 2-Storey Building Business Centre Leasehold land

#01-4150,    expiring on 

Singapore 560726   1 October 2079

No.11 Jalan Radin Anum,  4-Storey Building Office and Leasehold 

Bandar Baru Seri Petaling 57000,   Business Centre land expiring 

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia   on 5 April 2078

141 Jalan Danga  3-Storey Building Office and  Freehold

Taman Nusa Bestari Dua   Business Centre land

81300 Johor Bahru 

Malaysia 



100

Statistics of  Shareholdings
As at 15 March 2007

Number of Shares – 165,000,000  
Class of Equity Shares – Ordinary  
Voting Rights of Ordinary Shareholders – On show of hands : 1 vote for each member   
    On a poll : 1 vote for each ordinary share   
 

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS

             No. of  No. of

Size of Shareholdings       Shareholders % Shares %

1 - 999      75 10.30 23,760 0.01 
1,000 - 10,000    408 56.04 1,715,240 1.04 
10,001 - 1,000,000    228 31.32 18,815,400 11.4 
1,000,001 and above    17 2.34 144,445,600 87.55

Total:      728 100.00 165,000,000 100

  

SHAREHOLDING HELD IN HANDS OF PUBLIC      
Based on the information provided to the Company, as at 15 March 2007, approximately 48.24% of the issued ordinary 

shares of the Company is held by the public and therefore, Rule 723 of the Listing Manual is complied with.  

     

TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 15 MARCH 2007      
 
    % of 

Name of Shareholder No.  of shares  Shareholdings

1 D2 INVESTMENT PTE LTD          60,000,000  36.36
2 HSBC (SINGAPORE) NOMINEES PTE LTD  14,188,000  8.60
3 RAFFLES NOMINEES PTE LTD       13,693,000  8.30
4 DORA HOAN BENG MUI             9,081,600  5.50
5 DOREEN TAN NEE MOI             9,081,600  5.50
6 DBS NOMINEES PTE LTD           8,302,400  5.03
7 CITIBANK NOMINEES SINGAPORE PTE LTD   8,210,000  4.98
8 HONG LEONG FINANCE NOMINEES PTE LTD 6,612,400  4.01
9 PHILLIP SECURITIES PTE LTD     2,668,000  1.62
10 SBI E2-CAPITAL ASIA SECURITIES 2,545,000  1.54
11 UNITED OVERSEAS BANK NOMINEES PTE LTD 2,362,200  1.43
12 ROYAL BANK OF CANADA (ASIA) LTD 1,989,000  1.21
13 CITIBANK CONSUMER NOMINEES PTE LTD 1,227,000  0.74
14 HUANG BAN CHIN                 1,200,000  0.73
15 SBS NOMINEES PTE LTD           1,200,000  0.73
16 WEE KHENG HOE JASON            1,058,400  0.64
17 ASDEW ACQUISITIONS PTE LTD     1,027,000  0.62
18 CHUA SIOK LAN                  1,000,000  0.61
19 WEE KWEE HUAY HELENE           985,000  0.60
20 CHANG GRACE SHAIN-JOU 960,000  0.58

TOTAL  147,390,600  89.33
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 15 MARCH 2007
as recorded in the Register of Substantial Shareholders

 
             Direct Deemed 

Name of Substantial Shareholder    Interest Interest Total %

Hoan Beng Mui Dora  9,081,600 60,000,000 69,081,600 41.87 
Tan Nee Moi Doreen  9,081,600 60,000,000 69,081,600 41.87 
D2 Investment Pte. Ltd.  60,000,000 – 60,000,000 36.36 

    

(1)  Dr Hoan Beng Mui Dora and Dr Tan Nee Moi Doreen are directors and shareholders of D2 Investment Pte. Ltd. and 

they are each deemed to be interested in the shares held by D2 Investment Pte. Ltd..  

(2)  Mr Huang Ban Chin is deemed to have an indirect interest in 1,200,000 shares held through SBS Nominees Pte. Ltd 

and 4,800,000  shares held through Hong Leong Finance Nominees Pte. Ltd.
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Notice of  Annual 
General Meeting
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of the Company will be held at 1 Changi 

North Street 1 Lobby 2 Singapore 498789 on Friday, 27 April 2007 at 10:00 a.m. to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To receive and consider the Directors’ Report and Audited Accounts for the financial year 

ended 31 December 2006 and the Auditors’ Report thereon.

2. To approve the payment of a final one-tier tax-exempt dividend of 1.3 cents per ordinary 

share for the financial year ended 31 December 2006.

3. To re-elect Mr Ravindran s/o Ramasamy, who is retiring by rotation in accordance with 

Article 89 of the Company’s Articles of Association, as Director of the Company.

 [Mr Ravindran s/o Ramasamy will, upon re-election as a Director of the Company, remain as 

a member of the Audit Committee and will be considered independent for the purposes of 

Rule 704(8) of the Listing Manual of The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.]

4. To re-elect Mr Robson Lee Teck Leng, who is retiring by rotation in accordance with Article 

89 of the Company’s Articles of Association, as Director of the Company.

 [Mr Robson Lee Teck Leng will, upon re-election as a Director of the Company,remain as a 

member of the Audit Committee and will be considered independent for the purposes of 

Rule 704(8) of the Listing Manual of The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.]

5. To approve the Directors’ fees of S$84,000 for the financial year ended 31 December 2006. 

(2005: S$84,000)

6. To re-appoint Messrs RSM Chio Lim as Auditors and to authorise the Directors to fix their 

remuneration.

Resolution 1

Resolution 2

Resolution 3

Resolution 4

Resolution 5

Resolution 6
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SPECIAL BUSINESS :
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without any modifications, the following resolution 

as Ordinary Resolution:

7. Ordinary Resolution : Authority to allot and issue shares up to fifty per centum (50%) of the 

issued shares in the capital of the Company

 “That pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50 and subject to Rule 806 

of the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”), 

authority be and is hereby given to the Directors of the Company to allot and issue shares 

and convertible securities in the capital of the Company (whether by way of rights, bonus 

or otherwise) at any time and upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes and 

to such persons as the Directors may in their absolute discretion deem fit provided always 

that the aggregate number of shares and convertible securities to be issued pursuant to 

this Resolution does not exceed 50% of the issued shares of the Company, of which the 

aggregate number of shares and convertible securities to be issued other than on a pro rata 

basis to existing shareholders does not exceed 20% of the issued shares of the Company 

(the percentage issued shares being based on the issued shares in the capital of the 

Company at the time this Resolution is passed after adjusting for new shares arising from 

the conversion or exercise of any convertible securities or share options or vesting of share 

awards which are outstanding at the time this Resolution is passed and any subsequent 

consolidation or sub-division of shares) and unless revoked or varied by the Company in 

general meeting, such authority shall continue in force until the conclusion of the next 

Annual General Meeting or the expiration of the period within which the next Annual 

General Meeting of the Company is required by law to be held, whichever is the earlier.”

 [Explanatory Note (i)]

8. To transact any other business which may be properly transacted at an Annual General 

Meeting.

Explanatory Notes :

(i) Resolution 7, if passed, will empower the Directors from the date of the above Meeting 

until the date of the next Annual General Meeting, to allot and issue shares and convertible 

securities in the Company.  The number of shares, which the Directors may allot and issue 

under this Resolution would not exceed 50% of the issued shares of the Company at the 

time of passing this Resolution. For allotment and issue of shares and convertible securities 

other than on a pro-rata basis to all shareholders of the Company, the aggregate number of 

shares to be allotted and issued shall not exceed 20% of the issued shares of the Company. 

This authority will, unless previously revoked or varied at a general meeting, expire at the 

next Annual General Meeting.

Resolution 7
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NOTICE OF BOOKS CLOSURE
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Share Transfer Books and Register of Members of the Company will be closed on 5 

May 2007, for the purpose of determining members’ entitlements to the final one-tier tax-exempt dividend (the “Final 

Dividend”) to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 27 April 2007.

Duly completed registrable transfers in respect of the shares in the Company received up to the close of business at 

5:00 p.m. on 4 May 2007 by the Company’s Share Registrar, Tricor Barbinder Share Registration Services (A division 

of Tricor Singapore Pte. Ltd.), 8 Cross Street #11-00 PWC Building Singapore 048424 will be registered to determine 

members’ entitlements to the Final Dividend.  Members whose Securities Accounts with The Central Depository (Pte) 

Ltd are credited with shares in the Company as at 5:00 p.m. on 4 May 2007 will be entitled to such proposed Final 

Dividend.

The proposed Final Dividend, if approved at the Annual General Meeting will be paid on 17 May 2007.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Low Mei Mei Maureen

Company Secretary

Singapore

Date: 11 April 2007

Proxies: 

1. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the above Meeting may appoint not more than two proxies to attend and 

vote instead of him.

2. Where a member appoints two proxies, he shall specify the proportion of his shareholding to be represented by each proxy in the 

instrument appointing the proxies.  A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

3. If the member is a corporation, the instrument appointing the proxy must be under seal or the hand of an officer or attorney                

duly authorized.

4. The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at 1 Changi North Street 1 Lobby 2 

Singapore 498789 not less than 48 hours before the time set for the Annual General Meeting.

Notice of  Annual 
General Meeting



Proxy 
Form

IMPORTANT
1. For investors who have used their CPF monies to buy the Company’s shares, 

this Annual Report is forwarded to them at the request of their CPF Approved 
Nominees and is sent solely FOR INFORMATION ONLY.

2. This Proxy Form is not valid for use by CPF investors and shall be ineffective 
for all intents and purposes if used or purported to be used by them.

as my/our proxy/proxies to attend and to vote for me/us on my/our behalf and, if necessary, to demand a poll at the 

Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at 1 Changi North Street 1 Lobby 2 Singapore 498789 on Friday,          

27 April 2007 at 10:00 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof.  

(Please indicate with an “X” in the spaces provided whether you wish your vote(s) to be cast for or against the resolutions 

as set out in the Notice of Annual General Meeting. In the absence of specific directions, the proxy/proxies will vote or 

abstain as he/they may think fit, as he/they will on any other matter arising at the Annual General Meeting.)

I/We

of

being a member/members of Best World International Limited  (the “Company”) hereby appoint

       NRIC/Passport  Proportion of 
 Name   Address Number Shareholdings (%)

   

and/or (delete as appropriate)

      NRIC/Passport  Proportion of 
 Name   Address Number Shareholdings (%)

Dated this                         day of                          2007 

Signature(s) of member(s) or common seal
IMPORTANT:  PLEASE READ NOTES OVERLEAF

No.  Resolutions For Against

 ORDINARY BUSINESS  

1. To receive and consider Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports and Audited Accounts 
 for the year ended 31 December 2006.  

2. To approve payment of a final one-tier tax-exempt dividend.  

3. To re-elect Director – Mr Ravindran s/o Ramasamy  

4. To re-elect Director – Mr Robson Lee Teck Leng  

5. To approve the Directors’ fees.  

6. To re-appoint Messrs RSM Chio Lim as Auditors and authorise the Directors 
 to fix their remuneration.  

 SPECIAL BUSINESS  

7. To authorise Directors to allot and issue shares and convertible securities 
 pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50.

Total number of Share held



NOTES :

1. Please insert the total number of shares held by you. If you have shares entered against your name in the Depository 

Register (as defined in Section 130A of the Companies Act, Chapter 50), you should insert that number of shares. 

If you have shares registered in your name in the Register of Members, you should insert that number of shares. If 

you have shares entered against your name in the Depository Register and shares registered in your name in the 

Register of Members, you should insert the aggregate number of shares. If no number is inserted, this form of proxy 

will be deemed to relate to all the shares held by you.

2. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at a meeting of the Company is entitled to appoint not more 

than two proxies to attend and vote on his behalf. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

3. Where a member appoints more than one proxy, he shall specify the proportion of his shareholding to be represented 

by each proxy.

4. The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be under the hand of the appointor or his attorney duly authorised 

in writing. Where the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies is executed by a corporation, it must be executed 

either under its common seal or under the hand of its attorney or duly authorised officer.

5. A corporation which is a member of the Company may authorise by resolution of its directors or other governing 

body such person as it thinks fit to act as its representative at the Annual General Meeting, in accordance with its 

Articles of Association and Section 179 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50.

6. The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies, together with the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under 

which it is signed, or notarially certified copy thereof, must be deposited at the registered office of the Company at 1 

Changi North Street 1 Lobby 2 Singapore 498789 not less than 48 hours before the time set for the Annual General 

Meeting.

7. The Company shall be entitled to reject the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies if it is incomplete, improperly 

completed or illegible or where the true intentions of the appointor are not ascertainable from the instructions of 

the appointor specified in the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies. In addition, in the case of members of the 

Company whose shares are entered against their names in the Depository Register, the Company may reject any 

instrument appointing a proxy or proxies lodged if such members are not shown to have shares entered against 

their names in the Depository Register as at 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the Annual General 

Meeting as certified by The Central Depository (Pte) Limited to the Company.
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